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The COVID-19 pandemic has changed
virtually every aspect of our lives. Under
what has become known as the “new
normal”, investor and financial
education is more critical than ever for
equipping the public with the skills and

knowledge needed to navigate a
rapidly evolving digital world.
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Message from the Chairman
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The year 2020 has been a most challenging one,
beginning with the first reported case of the novel
coronavirus in Hong Kong towards the end of
January. In the months that followed, social
distancing became the new norm.

As people increasingly stayed indoors, lives revolved
around working from home. They turned to online
modes of investing, learning, shopping and
entertainment, while the process of digital
transformation — which was already well under way
before the pandemic — accelerated at an even
greater rate. The implications of this transformation
are only just now beginning to be understood.

During this period, smart money management
became even more crucial. With the added stress
that the pandemic imposed on households, the
financial learning opportunities we provide at

the IFEC became all the more important. These
included building an emergency fund, spending
prudently, following a budget, prioritising bills,
managing debts, keeping costs under control, and
de-risking investment portfolios.

Scams on the rise

A concerning trend that has come out of the
worsening economy and accelerated digital
adoption was the rise of financial and investment
scams, with unscrupulous operators looking to take
advantage of the situation.

In 2020, more than 15,500 deception cases were
reported to the Hong Kong Police, up by 89.3%
from the previous year. In general, we have seen
deceptions ranging from fraudulent websites set
up by sellers of non-existent surgical masks to
phone scams and ramp and dump schemes on
popular social media platforms. To warn people

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2020-21



against these online scams, the IFEC joined hands
with the Securities and Futures Commission to
produce a publicity campaign on social media
reminding the public to remain vigilant.

Money Month 2021

As the pandemic continued into 2021, the IFEC
hosted its all-virtual event online, from

the launch ceremony to financial education
activities throughout the month of March 2021.
The theme of this event was Digital Finance 360°:
Opportunities and Risks, with a focus on digital
money management, digital investing, and the
prevention of digital scams and cybersecurity.

Together with 60 stakeholders, a total of 80
financial education initiatives were made available
to the public for advancing digital financial literacy.

IFEC's role in the post-pandemic world

In these testing times, financial literacy has become
fundamental to support financial well-being. With
face-to-face delivery of our programmes coming to
a halt, we accelerated our digital journey to adapt
offline learning into online resources. We will
continue to evolve and enhance our work in line
with current societal needs.

In 2021, we at the IFEC will persist in our mission to
build financial resilience among Hong Kong people.
Investor and financial educational initiatives such
as our Keep Your Finances in Good Shape under
COVID-19 campaign, Don't Fall Prey to Online
Financial Scams campaign, World Investor Week,
Global Money Week, festive money learning
campaigns for schoolchildren and other online
investor and financial education resources provided

the momentum needed to reinforce the
importance of financial literacy and create more
financial learning opportunities.

| take this opportunity to acknowledge and
appreciate the many regulators, law enforcement
agencies and partners that work with the IFEC.

| also thank all members of the IFEC Board,
Advisory Groups and our stakeholders for their
advice and support during a particularly
challenging year.

Finally, I would like to welcome Ms Dora Li who
joined us in May 2020 as our new General
Manager following the departure of Mr David
Kneebone. She brings more than 20 years of
experience in the global banking industry and
13 years in corporate sustainability leading
international financial education initiatives.
Since 2018, she has also been the convenor of
the IFEC Advisory Group on Financial Education
for Schoolchildren and a member of this group
since 2015. | am confident that with Ms Li at the
helm, IFEC continues to be in good hands.

| look forward to working with her, the members
of the Board and staff of the IFEC in what we all
hope is a better year ahead.

NS

Lester Huang
SBS, JP

Chairman
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Message from the Chairman
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Message from the General Manager

HRARIERYEE

| am excited to embark on my journey with the
IFEC team and look forward to continuing the
momentum to bring investor and financial
education to the Hong Kong public, and to help
induce positive attitudinal and behavioural change
in people’s investment and financial management
habits and decisions.

During the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the
“new normal” has accelerated the rapidly growing
digital transformation that is taking place across
the world as well as at the IFEC. What | have
learned is just how agile we at IFEC have been in
mobilising our resources into the digital space and
ensuring our work could continue during a time of
social distancing and unprecedented disruption.

In 2020, we carried out a number of digital
initiatives. One of these was our Financial Education
Champion Award presentation ceremony in
December, which was held online due to the
outbreak. These awards recognise the contributions
of organisations across Hong Kong in improving
financial literacy. Hong Kong Money Month 2021
was also launched in March via a virtual ceremony
supported by a whole array of online activities.

We also looked at how we could create

day-to-day and festive learning opportunities for
schoolchildren who were confined at home.
During the Christmas season, we held an online
Santa Challenge to encourage children to set goals
and action plans in money management. The
Challenge was organised into School and Open
divisions — 85 schools took part in the former, with

8 Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2020-21



over 5,100 participants in total. For Chinese New
Year, we prepared a series of web games, money
learning kits and an online Laisee Budget Planner
to cultivate good money habits.

For the first time, we developed an online anti-
scam quiz featuring The Chin Family characters
during our March anti-scam campaign for the
public to test their knowledge under real life
situations, in a bid to enhance positive behavioural
change.

What's more, we tapped into digital and social
media channels to reach our target groups and
disseminated pertinent messages around saving
and debt management, prudent investing and
cybersecurity, while reminding the public to stay
vigilant against frauds and scams.

In a 2020 research report on financial knowledge
released by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development International
Network on Financial Education, although Hong
Kong ranked first in financial knowledge among
the 26 countries and economies, we came in sixth
for financial behaviour and fourteenth for financial
attitude. So, clearly there is still a lot of room for
improvement.

For this reason, | responded to the Government's
2020 Policy Address public consultation with three
recommendations:

1. Put financial management at the forefront of
youth development policy;

2. Integrate financial education into the primary
school curriculum; and

3. Set up a cross-bureau taskforce to combat and
educate the public on financial and investment
scams, a growing trend in Hong Kong.

If implemented, these changes will go far in

ensuring we can improve financial literacy and
cultivate the right financial behaviour in Hong
Kong, particularly among our next generation.

The past year has been an eventful one for all of
us at the IFEC, and | am delighted to have the
opportunity to be part of this excellent team who
have done so much to advance investor and
financial education in Hong Kong.

Going forward, despite uncertainties, new
challenges also mean new opportunities.

| look forward to even closer collaboration and
cooperation among our team, the Board,

our partners and stakeholders to overcome the
challenges and create opportunities to help
steer Hong Kong towards a better future.

| look forward to your continuing support as we
embark on this meaningful journey together.

Dora Li
General Manager

REEREMHEREE2020-21F8K
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Message from the General Manager
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About the IFEC
REERIBMHBETZEGHIN

The Investor and Financial
Education Council (IFEC) is an
independent public organisation
and a subsidiary of the Securities
and Futures Commission (SFC),
dedicated to improving financial
literacy in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (HKSAR).
The IFEC is supported by the four
financial regulators and the
Education Bureau.

Our organisation is tasked with
the role to provide investor and
financial education to the Hong
Kong public. Following the HKSAR
Government's public consultation in
February 2010 and the subsequent
amendment of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance in May 2012,
the Investor Education Centre,
now known as the IFEC, was
established in November 2012.
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Our Mission fiEds

- —

Our mission is to equip the public with the
knowledge, attitudes and skills to make informed
financial decisions to manage money wisely.
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Our Partners 6184
P

We consult and work in partnership with
government agencies and the financial services,
education and community sectors to identify the
pressing needs of society and segment groups, and
design educational materials and programmes to
raise financial literacy levels and strengthen
financial resilience.
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Our Work IfE

——————

In April 2016, we launched The Chin Family platform
to provide comprehensive, credible and impartial
investor and financial education information, tools
and education resources to the Hong Kong public.

Our work includes the following:

- mass media campaigns to raise awareness of and
to deliver pertinent investor and financial
education messages;

- tailored education programmes and seminars
that address the needs of target groups;

- financial education tools, services and support for
parents, social workers and teachers; and

« collaboration with stakeholders and community
partners to extend the reach of our work on
investor and financial education in Hong Kong.

The IFEC drives the Financial Literacy Strategy,
which aims to create a conducive environment for
stakeholders to deliver more quality investor and
financial education to the Hong Kong public.
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Governance #BgA

-

An independent Board of Directors oversees the
work of the IFEC. It comprises the Chairman, who is
a non-executive director of the SFC, and
representatives from the four financial regulators —
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, the Insurance
Authority, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority and the SFC. It also includes
representatives from the education and finance
sectors, as well as the General Manager of the IFEC.
The Board meets every three months to provide
strategic oversight and advice to the IFEC and
approves its policies and decisions.
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Board of Directors
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HUANG, Lester sss, i

E=R 4l ses, P
Chairman,

REENBMBEZEGER

Mr Huang is a Non-Executive Director of the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC). He is currently Managing Partner
and Co-Chairman of PC Woo & Co, Solicitors.

Mr Huang started his career as a solicitor in 1985 and was
admitted as a Partner of PC Woo & Co, Solicitors in 1991. He is a
Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a Member
of the Hong Kong Academy of Finance.

Mr Huang's public roles include serving as Chairman of the
Council of the City University of Hong Kong, Chairman of the
Standing Committee on Language Education and Research
and Ex-officio Member of the Education Commission. He also
chairs the Social Welfare Advisory Committee.

Previously, Mr Huang was President of The Law Society of
Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
and a Non-Executive Director of the Urban Renewal Authority.
He was also a member of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority's
Exchange Fund Advisory Committee, Hospital Authority and
the Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of
Service. He chaired the Board of Advisors of Radio Television
Hong Kong and served as a Director of The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited.

Mr Huang is Chairman of the Investor and Financial Education
Council and the SFC's Remuneration Committee. He is also
Deputy Chairman of the SFC's Budget Committee, and sits on
the SFC (HKEC Listing) Appeals Committee.
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From 20 October 2018
Current appointment expires
on 14 November 2021
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LI Dora
Rk

General Manager,

BEEREMHEEE TREE

Ms Li is the General Manager of the Investor and Financial
Education Council (IFEC). At the IFEC, Ms Li is responsible for
leading the strategic development of the Council’s investor
and financial education initiatives, with the aim to equip the
public with the knowledge, attitudes and skills to make
informed financial decisions and manage their money wisely.

Prior to joining the IFEC, Ms Li was the Head of Futures Skills,
Corporate Sustainability, Asia Pacific Region of HSBC,
overseeing Future Skills strategy on financial literacy and

employability in Hong Kong and 13 markets across Asia Pacific.

Ms Li possesses over 20 years of extensive experience in the
global banking industry, ranging from wealth management
and sales & marketing to corporate sustainability. She has also
held senior positions at HSBC's head office in London, United
Kingdom. Ms Li has been the Convenor of the IFEC Advisory
Group on Financial Education for Schoolchildren since 2018,
and a member since 2015.

From 18 May 2020
Current appointment expires
on 17 May 2023
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Board of Directors
BERB

EXRA OISt oo
Industry representative
ERAR

Dr Auyeung joined the Board of MTR Corporation Limited as a
Non-Executive Director on 7 March 2019 and has been the
Non-executive Chairman since 1 July 2019.

Dr Auyeung is an independent Non-Executive director of China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited and C-MER Eye
Care Holdings Limited. He has over 40 years of experience in
the insurance industry in Canada and Hong Kong. Before his
retirement in June 2017, Dr Auyeung was Chairman — Asia of the
Principal Financial Group Inc. (‘PFG’), a Fortune 500 company,
responsible for PFC’s overall businesses in Asia. During his time
with PFG, Dr Auyeung represented PFG and its member
companies across Asia in building and expanding PFC’s
relationship with clients, joint venture partners and strategic
investors, and assisting in business development across all
products lines of PFG.

Dr Auyeung also actively serves the public sector and is
currently an observer of the Independent Police Complaints
Council Observers Scheme, and a member of the Board of
Directors of the Investor and Financial Education Council under
the Securities and Futures Commission. In addition, he is a
board member of Bo Charity Foundation (Food Angel) and a
convenor of the Advisory Committee of the Jockey Club
Community eHealth Care Project.

Dr Auyeung was previously an independent non-executive
director of HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited,
Standard Life (Asia) Limited and Sompo Insurance China Co.,
Ltd., Chairman of Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy
Sub-committee on Stakeholder Coordination and Collaboration,
a member of the Independent Review Committee on Hong
Kong'’s Franchised Bus Service, Chairman of the Council of
Lingnan University and the Senior Strategy and Business
Advisor at Athenex Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ in the
United States of America.

Dr Auyeung holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies (Urban
and Regional Planning) Honours Degree from the University of
Waterloo, Canada. He was awarded an Honorary Fellowship by
the City University of Hong Kong in 2013 and conferred a Doctor
of Business Administration, honoris causa, by Lingnan University

in 2020. Dr Auyeung was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2018.
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From 19 October 2018
Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2021
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RZEIE css i,
Insurance Authority
REEEER

Mr Cheung has been the Chief Executive Officer of the
Insurance Authority since August 2018 upon retirement from
the Administrative Service which he joined in 1983. Senior
posts that he took up during this career include Director of the
Hong Kong Economic and Trade Office in Singapore from 1998
to 2001 when the Asian Financial Crisis erupted, Commissioner
of Insurance from 2006 to 2009 during the global financial
crisis, Postmaster General from 2009 to 2011, Commissioner of
Customs and Excise from 2011 to 2015 and Secretary for the
Civil Service from 2015 to 2017. He is currently a member of the
Executive Committee of the International Association of
Insurance Supervisors and Chairman of the Asian Forum of
Insurance Regulators.

From 21 November 2018
Current appointment expires
on 20 November 2021

BH2018&E11B218i#E

CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clementass, ip BHEERE 2021411820 BEH

RICENI98IEMABIE EERR » BB
2018 F8 BB RIMELEERITEALE © fthH
EENTEREUEE 1998 E X 2001FEE M
ERERIFEIE > HESEHMNESEEZE S
MEBEER ; 2006 FE 2009 FHERMBES
BHEE  KERKERAEE ; 2009FF2011F
HIESHBITHREER ; 2011 EE 2015F HIEEH
R > UKR2015EFE 2017 EHEATKEEEER
BE - IREERRREEERERITZES
REREMNREEEEREER -
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SREEUZ sBs, 10
Industry Representative

ERMAE

Mr Cheung graduated with an EMBA degree from The City
University of Hong Kong in 2007 and is currently the Chairman
of Christfund Securities Limited. He has extensive financial
experience, particularly in stock and futures trading for over
40 years.

Mr Cheung was a member (Financial Services) of Hong Kong's
Legislative Council from 2012 to 2016 and was re-elected for a
second term in 2016. He is also a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.

Previously, Mr Cheung was a member of the Council of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (1997 to 2000), the director of
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Co. Ltd. (1998 to 2000), Vice
Chairman of the Independent Police Complaints Council (2015
to 2020), and a member of the Disciplinary Appeals Committee
of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

He currently serves as the Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong
Business and Professional Alliance, Honorary President of the
Hong Kong Securities Professionals Association, Elected
Director of the Hong Kong Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, President of the Hong Kong China Chamber of
Commerce, consultant of the Chinese Banking Association of
Hong Kong, Director and Vice Secretary General of the Friends
of Hong Kong Association, Honorary President of the Hong
Kong Federation of Fujian Associations, Vice Chairman of the
Federation of HK Jiangsu Community Organization, a Court
Member of the City University of Hong Kong, and a member
of the Chinese Overseas Friendship Association.
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CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher sss, ip

From 1 March 2021
Current appointment expires
on 29 February 2024

20213818
BRIfEERZE 2024 FE2 29 HEm

RAEFEEBUTASITRAELHEERLT
B > RAEBES (EE) BRAFESER >
NEEMIRFFEBB40F » HITELHEREM
HEXZEEERNEER -

RAER202FERIFTERRBRES
WHL 2016 FE&EE » TR REZEBHES °

RAEEBREIETEH ST BAIESE (1997F
2000%) « BB REEMBRATESE (1998
ZE20005F) « BUBEREHEERFEEGE
FE > UREBRZFLELREEGME o

RELERERASEBLEREMEREE - &8
BHEEGXEREER EEPERHTEET
E -FRETEREER EEERRITAGE
B EBREBESEENENER - EERER
HEBMEXERESR ERIKTEESE
Bk -EERTAREBZEENE ~ URPE
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Ho Fu Ho, Jonathan

AE=

BEINEATREFBEER

Mr Ho joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
(MPFA) as Head (External Affairs) in August 2018. (His title was
later retitled as Director (External Affairs)). He oversees a wide
range of publicity related functions of the MPFA including
corporate communications, media relations, MPF scheme
member education and stakeholder engagement.

Before joining MPFA, Mr Ho worked in the areas of corporate
communication and journalism in various organizations for
over three decades including Hong Kong Productivity Council,
Hong Kong Housing Authority, Cable TV and Television
Broadcasts Ltd, etc.

LAU Man Man, Lisa sss, MH, 3P

I3 8BS, MH, 3P
Industry representative

FRAE

Ms Lau is the Creative Director of GAL Graphics Consultants
Limited. She is an expert in design branding and publicity and
has served on various government councils and advisory
committees. In her past role as Chair of the Hong Kong Council
on Smoking and Health (COSH), she was involved in raising
awareness of the harm associated with second-hand smoke
through social media, putting forward an amendment to the
Smoking (Public Health) Ordinance and raising tobacco taxes.

Ms Lau currently serves as Chairman of the Committee in
Complaints Against Private Healthcare Facilities. She also
serves as a board member of the Hospital Authority, Court
member of City University of Hong Kong, and a member of
Steering Committee on Prevention & Control of NCD. She was
appointed a Justice of the Peace (non-official) in 2006 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2013 by the Government
of the HKSAR.

From 26 August 2019
Current appointment expires
on 25 August 2022

BH20194 8826 AiE
BeIfEEE 202248 525 HEH

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority

‘\v/

RIEER 2018 E 8 BIMARFIME R EEZFEE
2R (EER) > HEXE BHIEH) > aER
ERHIINEEHRAE > SIEHBER - FIERS
% RRESHENEHERFFNERR -

S EEREBB =+ F X ENMNNEEEIE
SR > EMABERH B ERNRBEEEES
FENRER BEEEZEE  ARERNE
REFBRARZ -

From 19 October 2015
Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2021

2015410819 HiE
BeIEHRZE2021410 B 18 HEM

2%+ 2 GAL Graphics Consultants
Limited AI1E4RES - BIZ THERN MR K
EEEE  BESBHIITREBFEELSE
LZEGNE - THRATAREHBEZESERE
iR FREZEEMMETHEISEEFE
M= > RN BHEEE N ERIEM
FEETR o

R IRBALEBBBBRFEEGERE
HBEERREERESEME - EBMHAR
HEEZEgNE - HEEERFELRETS
8 o BIZ T RIIE2006 FE R 2013 EEF BT
THEBRRZEAIFE TR AT REEIEEF
BEo
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LEUNG Sze Ho, Louis

AREHEEHEEGWERE

Mr Leung is the Deputy Secretary-General of the University
Grants Committee Secretariat. He provides support for the
University Grants Committee in areas such as academic
planning, funding, student affairs, campus development and
internationalisation in respect of the eight publicly-funded
universities in Hong Kong. He is also the Secretary of the
Quality Assurance Council and oversees university matters
relating to the quality of teaching and learning.

SO Ka Pik, Linda

BRE

Hong Kong Monetary Authority
BEETHEER

Ms So was appointed as Executive Director (Corporate
Services) of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA) in
January 2020, and is responsible for corporate development,
corporate services and communication strategy. Ms So holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and a Master of Arts
degree from the University of Cambridge. She has many years
of experience in public policy, administration and corporate
affairs. Before joining HKMA, Ms So has served as the
Corporate Affairs Director of the MTR Corporation and the
Director General of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
and was a member of the civil service for over 20 years. Ms So
is currently a member of the Advisory Board of The Hong Kong
Red Cross, the Public Relations Committee of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong, as well as a member of the Executive
Committee, and the Chairperson of the Branding, Fundraising
& Resources Development Committee of the Boys' & Girls’
Clubs Association of Hong Kong.
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From 9 December 2019
Current appointment expires
on 8 December 2022

BH2019F12 59 Hite
BeiIfEEEZE2022F12 B8 HEMR

University Grants Committee Secretariat

REERABYEENZEENERINER
AR\ B RBEREEEMIRE ~ B
BLEE AEREZERMBEBRLFHBRAE
HEEPZEFRMIIE - HEEERRER
WE > AEARBHBEREMEE -

From 18 February 2020
Current appointment expires
on 17 February 2023

H2020&£2H18HiE
BrEIEHE2023FE2/8178Em

BUTR2020F 1 BEEEEBTREERNG
By (KBHENEE) > AERBEE K8
EENEARBEY - HRIHEHERBASE
BHRBBTBANXBETEM > THESFRE
ANHBER ~ THREBEHEER - thBETEE
BUFRESE20F - BEFRBTR S HESBERK
BRABDADEHREUNE BT EETES
WIRBEBA+FHREME - BELRES AR
BREEENES > UREB/NERDGHE -
ENRNEREREEGEE -



WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew
mEE

Securities and Futures Commission
BEENAEEREREEY

Mr Wan is Chief Financial Officer of the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC), overseeing finance and administration,
corporate planning, human resources, information technology
and complaints handling. As a member of the SFC's Executive
Committee, he is responsible for formulating and executing
corporate strategies to improve the SFC's regulatory capability
and effectiveness.

In his over 30 years of extensive financial and business
experience, Mr Wan worked with leading professional firms
and served as chief financial officer of listed companies in
Hong Kong and Canada. He holds Bachelor of Commmerce and
MBA degrees and is a member of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong.

Meeting attendance record &% Esif

Meetings attended/held
HEERRE/ RITRE

Lester HUANG (Chairman) 4[4
U ES )

Dora LI (CGeneral Manager)' 3/3
itk (4RAEE) 1

Dr AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex 3/4
BifEaEE L

CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement 414
REIE

CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher? -
SREELE?

HO Fu Ho, Jonathan 4/4

AER

LAU Man Man, Lisa 4/4
Elheve

LEUNG Sze Ho, Louis 4/4

50 B85
ZER

SO Ka Pik, Linda 2/4

ZrooEn
o=

WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew 4[4
BEE

From 19 October 2012
Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2021

201210519 Bt
BHa{EEAZE 2021410 B 18 HiE@m

\).r'

BELRESFMIEEFEREEE BET)
BEREMHRE > AEEEMBRITE - HER
B ANER ~ BABHRNIRFEE - thEEEs
BATEEERE > BEFBINAITEESH
PEABERBR TS > (EMERFHEFRLRL o

BAERERKETAEEBEICENEEE

5 BNEXREHAER > TREBRNEKX
N ETARREEFEMHRE - thEEHSE LK
TrEEERLTE > TRMERFTFEMAE
GENREBAEXG N o

T Appointed as General Manager effective
18 May 2020.

H202045 A 18 HER T ALK

2 Appointed as Board member effective
1 March 2021.
H20215 3B 1 HEZEARE
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No matter what others might say, there is no
such thing as easy money. Building your
wealth takes time, effort and, most
importantly, knowledge. The IFEC provides
the information and tools needed to help you
make well-informed money management
and investment decisions, particularly during
a period when financial pressures have been
on the rise. All of these resources are readily
available online, free of charge, to help you
pave your path to a secure financial future.

REMELIF—FH-—INE > FMEFERHN
BH EEEREMMH o MAEEEREAE
% > REGRMUNVENNM TR > gEBIR
EHBAE RN EM MR ERTE - KEGHIEFTE
BERBER  BRESEEME > RIBW
RIRARK ©
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Public Campaigns and Resources

ERFEDRER

24

oo BE\imEm

Y

In a year of extraordinary challenges, we continued to organise
publicity campaigns across multiple touch points, in particular
through online channels, on a variety of financial topics such as
those related to the COVID-19 pandemic. The IFEC Chin Family
website remained one of our most popular resources during this
period, addressing topical financial matters, providing the latest
market and regulatory updates, and offering a range of digital tools
to help people of all ages make informed financial decisions.

TR EREBN—F > REGUBEBITRARE > LEHPELTSEETR
i’&tlj%EWJQD@W‘Ta*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂémiﬂﬁa‘—{%ﬂ?@J  RHG NERBE FULTA
ERZERTIENERZ— BRTATRRERMEFNHEREEEN « &
REEMENEE > TRE—RFALERTE » HHAREHENA LR
BRBHNMFEERE o

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2020-21




EH

Online Public
Campaigns
PBLEEER
BEEE

0

1]
Multiple online
touch points

Zib@ L
-3k

The Chin
Family Website

BRAEHG

Helping people cope with COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic created many financial challenges for

the Hong Kong public during the year. In response, the IFEC
launched the Keep Your Finances in Good Shape under
COVID-19 campaign with a wide range of online financial
education resources and tools to support individuals and
families, and provide guidance on financial management
during the pandemic.

Home-learning resources during the
pandemic

The outbreak of COVID-19 caused schools to suspend classes
and disrupted many family activities. To support financial
education at home, the IFEC adopted an edutainment
approach with various activities and resources for families
with schoolchildren to continue learning.

Parenting and Money portal

The IFEC one-stop Parenting and Money portal offers
age-appropriate activity sheets and games for young
schoolchildren, and encourages parents to adopt a stronger
home-learning environment during the pandemic. The
resources available through this channel helped turn day-to-
day activities into valuable financial learning experiences.

Mass Media

World Investor Week, Global
Money Week, Santa Challenge,
Lunar New Year campaign
HRLEER « HFRIEE (B
EANIANE > RENFERELEEH

Keep Your Finances in
Good Shape under
COVID-19 campaign, debt
and borrowing campaign I,
anti-scam campaign, press
releases, Facebook,
Instagram

MEET Keep FIRE 111 EE
B EHNEEEEES I
PrBREEEE) ~ MRS

Facebook & Instagram

’
-
~

ARER

Blog, e-newsletters, e-booklets,
web games, videos, tools
SRS ~ BFEA  BFTI
LR RRREMTA

B R EHER
BEBEEHREFTDUIHE - BRRLL -
REGH L ST Keep SRS 1811 5

EH > MR- AN L REERRTA > A
ARR RS TR HIER53 -

ZERERTEXRSHE
TEARBRER  THETVREED AT
TEBEERSEY > RARRESBHIRE
AR ARPBERESHIDRAR - B
BRAERSE -

MFIEMIAE
BEEN—nXRFEMEE) ARERME
SHERIESTFERER > #EELEEN
HENEMBERE > TEBRREZBETHA
BRER > BFLERERNKESEE o
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Public Campaigns and Resources
EEEHNRER

Public Campaigns
My Money Challenge

We developed a learning kit in July for children to acquire
essential money skills via home-based projects during the
“unusual” summer of 2020. Included in the kit are activities such
as a snack challenge to show the difference between needs
and wants, a virtual holiday to learn about various currencies,
and a toy stocktake to reduce unnecessary spending.

G @@@@Mmum_

TANMT ARG PN (AR I0H)
FCTR TR I T T
EEERBEAE S MRNBNG

T T EE T I R T L CEE TN
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EAFIREE R — BRI ERPEITRT
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ERERAE SN URBERRTAN
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Principals of primary schools discussed how to
teach children the value of money and prudent
spending during the Christmas season.
NERRIRET U A F P B2 L AR A/ NBR A R IE FE < 88
BRNBEEERS



Santa Challenge

With the ongoing disruption of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
IFEC launched its first school-based online Santa Challenge for
kindergarten and primary schoolchildren in December 2020.

With the support of the Education Bureau, the challenge gave
kindergarten and primary school students the opportunity to
play the role of Santa Claus, set goals and a budget, and
prepare gifts for their loved ones or those in need.

In the Santa Challenge, parents
taught their children money concepts
through interactions and discussions.

RREMEAN ) AEERRREBEHN
stam 0 MR FERERNEMES

5,100+

submissions received

521510022 EER

il #

MR ERE A KHRE

EEIBHET REGH2020F 12/ #H
HAMEEN/ N S2EEMRNEEREL2FES
TRBEFHE A AE -

I LB FEBEIHE RS BRELS
EfEAN > STUERKER > BRAHEREN
NELEFEEY) -

We developed a learning kit
with tips and games for
participants to learn essential
money skills during the
Christmas season.

IR VEM FREIEMIREN
PR RS RBBEREENERHN
EIRF AR AR S o

1,000,000+

video views
ERBIEREEBIBI00E

N
85

schools took part
in the School division

SSFIERZBHBRELLE

N

AU
2,500+

e-learning

kits distributed
IkEEi8iIE 2,500
4 EIRRA 2 E

N
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Public Campaigns and Resources
EEEHNRER

Lunar New Year campaign for schoolchildren RENMEEEHEED

In February 2021, the IFEC launched an online campaign with 2021528 » REGLRMP LHEES > #E
the support of the Education Bureau. The campaign included METEMNHEMAE - B4 s « EBEIRE

a webpage with festive-themed web games, activity sheets TVE4R > WURFI S5 S s e > TARER
and the online Laisee Budget Planner, as well as money tips IS HIBRE T  AT R > EEERNE D
and a webinar for parents and schoolchildren. T o

In the interactive web game, children were given tasks such RS LB > N EEE AR SRS

as stuffing lai see packets and buying festive foods to learn
basic money concepts. These included recognising different

currency denominations, counting and calculating money, ) - A B
and making payments. After completing the challenge, RARMFREETES  RFRE ERFRE -

children could then take a selfie and use it to SEBNIR AR R E RS H %5838 51,000
create a personalised red couplet to send good wishes to BIERE

their relatives and friends. These resources attracted over

51,000 page views.

BEFRREES > kMBBWNTRAEREE
STEEEERMAM - TREHE - DNRKRETLUER

Festive-themed activity sheets and
personalised red couplets made it
fun for children to learn through play.
FEETEEMESTEENEAMCET

BE > FIBARESENRIT -

This interactive web game provided
a meaningful and engaging way for
children to learn money concepts
during the Chinese New Year.

ERENEHE MK BEBRESE L
BEEPAESHRMS  BREBXNREEE

P/ &

A ey SR

L remmET
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ERRREE:

EEmEEEERE A) =
RESHEANE

O Mr Lester Huang, Chairman of the IFEC,
delivered a speech during the first-ever
virtual Ring the Bell for Financial
Literacy event organised by Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

REQIFRRMTENTBRZEMN
TR RER) A EEhEE: -

World Investor Week

For the fourth year in a row, the IFEC organised World Investor
Week, a global initiative led by the International Organization
of Securities Commissions (IOSCO) to promote investor
education and protection. Our campaign for this event, which
ran from 5 to 11 October 2020, focused on the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on investments, reinforced prudent
investment concepts and helped raise public awareness of the
more pervasive types of investment scams targeting retail
investors.

Despite being conducted online, World Investor Week 2020
saw an increase in stakeholder participation, included
activities held by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
Hong Kong Green Finance Association, Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong, CFA Institute,
CFA Society Hong Kong and Institute of Financial Planners of
Hong Kong.

= SRR 2 QR AHnam

@ A Facebook live talk on green
~/ investment opportunities
generated over 85,000 views.

R EREHIBN Facebook Ei%
3 RESR 151838 85,000 2 B R & o

tRigEERE
REGEEFNFEMBNERIZSETHERES
M (ERESESER) PN FRIEEE

B EEREEHBERRRE - SEEBNR2020
FI0ASHENHET » ARRENERHRE
NEE - MBRFEREMS - URBERRERE
HEBRPREENRERR °

RS FROEBONARE LB1T - E2ENENE
HENBRER  GEEEEREH - FEGE
RIS ~ A ARGFEQE « CFARE
EENTERONMBENEBHBERIMNES
ES R
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Public Campaigns and Resources
EEEHNRER

i o

.

AL 22-288

° *m&t&gumﬁ‘sm
#GlobalMoneyWock2021

A Facebook live talk was organised during GMW. It
featured the IFEC Personal Finance Ambassadors as

well as representatives from the IFEC and the St.

Five TV infomercials were produced for the
debt and borrowing campaign II.

EBREEEFED I CE—ERAENERES °

James’ Settlement in a discussion on money
management for young people in today's digital age.

Tt FIERHEARE -

FIER17—15 Facebook EIEHBEE »

BHEREZGEANBMAEELER > URERSEHEAE
SR EERAEBERRTHYHERE -

Global Money Week

The IFEC organised Hong Kong's edition of Global Money Week
(GMW) in March 2021 as part of an annual global awareness-
raising programme by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development International Network on
Financial Education (OECD/INFE) to promote financial literacy
among children and young people. Together with our
education partners and NGOs, we organised territory-wide
money management challenges for young children of all ages,
up to the tertiary level, to learn about money management
through fun and segment-appropriate activities.

We also launched a webpage featuring resources and activities
from the IFEC and stakeholders to aid financial learning and
build financial resiliency among the younger generation.

Mass media campaigns

Debt and borrowing campaign Il

In an economy severely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic,
people in Hong Kong faced financial uncertainty, including
debt repayment and borrowing pressures.

To remind the public to think carefully before they borrow, the
IFEC launched the second phase of the debt and borrowing
campaign, which ran from October to December 2020.

To reinforce responsible borrowing practices, we provided a
checklist outlining the key considerations for taking out a loan
and choosing a loan provider. The campaign videos together
recorded over 5.3 million views, while the web banners
delivered over 46 million impressions and 156,000 clicks.
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Anti-scam campaign PrBR¥ S iEED

In today’s age of digital technology, the growing volume of ERSHEBREFENR ) EFEELAELBREH
e-commerce and online investment activities have given rise BRHEAN > YEERSEENMNALBIEIR o HIFIHL 20214
to more fraudulent activities. Our anti-scam campaign was 3AEREMEHEES RS BNAE LSy
launched in March 2021 to highlight the tactics of the more BB EEFRANEE » 2EAS/W,
pervasive types of online financial and investment scams and B5 %5 o

caution the public to guard against them.
EBRRAHABOS0BRERY  HLEESE

The campaign videos generated around 9.5 million views; the
palg d 6,400 BRI /R B K 513,000 B4 L8 o

web banners delivered over 64 million impressions and 513,000
clicks.

acarghk |
G e

Anti-scam Online Quiz

e 7 [ A48 = Bl 55
BE!
S

We designed an online quiz to help people
assess how susceptible they are to financial
and investment scams. By answering a list of

HLINK? ) — questions, respondents were able to learn
MRLINK ! f about the different types of scams and how to
avoid them.

REGRHA LIS  BAMTEECREES
FhR - MRAZEFXIKMERE - BT BT RRREH
BRFE » URMNIERZER o

e
HE !
 EEA!

Through advertising and promotion
channels, we warned the public to
guard against various financial and
investment online scams.
EMEBESNEBEEERE » IREAR
PrEs R RN L ERRISEBRE ©
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Public Campaigns and Resources
EEEHNRER

Sustainable finance

Sustainable finance has become a key focus area of the IFEC's
investor education work. On our website, we have published
articles explaining the basic concepts of sustainable investing,
including topics such as ESG (environmental, social and
governance) and socially responsible investing. During the
year, we also conducted media interviews, contributed to
media bylines and held a live Facebook talk on green
investment opportunities, which generated over 85,000 views.

Investing 101 video series

Smart investing starts with understanding the basics. To help
beginners take their first step towards investing, the IFEC
developed 15 video tutorials covering fundamental investment
concepts, risk and portfolio management. The videos, which
featured former news anchors and experts from professional
associations discussing stocks, funds and general investment
concepts, attracted over 450,000 views.

We adopted a light-hearted
approach in the Investing 101
video series to explain different
investment concepts.
MREBERLE ) R UEREBH
FHRRRIGERS o
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We reminded investors to
read a company's ESG/
sustainability reports for a full
picture of its performance.
BPREREE(FHREATN
ESCHAIFEERRE » UE2A T
FRABIRIRIR o

My Money Story showed
how people from all
walks of life approach
their finances.
TEMVIBR S B ERRE
ANERERA - sFaR IR
IRRAHREE o



Retirement Planning Guide

During the year, we published a new money management
guide for the pre- and new-to-retirement segments, with tips on
how to manage retirement assets wisely. The guide is available
in print and electronic versions with interactive elements.

The Chin Family Blog

We blog on various money topics related to day-to-day life
events and personal finance and provide insights into market
developments. Some of the more popular topics we have
covered include tax loans, money management during the
COVID-19 pandemic, overseas property investments, stock
investing, scams, retirement planning, debt and borrowing
and cybersecurity. Over 158,000 page views were recorded
during the year.

Multi-faceted investor education

During the year, there was a substantial rise in investment
scams on social media, such as ramp and dump stock
investment schemes based on false insider information and
tips from so-called experts. In response, we ran a campaign
warning the public to remain vigilant.

We also developed investor education resources on topical
issues and provided updates on product and regulatory
developments. These covered investing in real estate
investment trusts (REITs), warehousing of shares, listed
structured products, crude oil futures ETFs, leveraged forex,
delisting, short-selling and crypto-assets, among other
investment topics.
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§ IFEC
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The public was reminded to guard against
investment scams trending on social media
during the pandemic.

R EHIRE - REEIREH R ERIMERTEL RS £
BRINRERSE

WiliFact Check a

8

.

We make use of eye-catching visuals
to illustrate the basics of retirement
money management for the pre- and

AR REE R O

REpIEAEBIR?

new-to-retirement segments.

HAINESE R E B EFRARAIRIRAL
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Public Campaigns and Resources
EEEHNRER

As of 31 March 2021, The IFEC Chin Family recorded
BHE2021F3831H ' RZEN BREEI HEFAEREF

2,509,445 @ s
798,396 P i
80,602 @ e
7,566 @ e

* Aggregation of the monthly number of users who visited our website at least once.
FAIFELED—RIERE ABLBRM o

Digital promotions BREE

Taking advantage of the latest technologies and popular BEeEAERRENBBE MNerEEE
digital channels, the IFEC produces timely and engaging 1£ Facebook & Instagram BB &/EZ TLH
content on its Facebook and Instagram pages. 7 > RBETER o B REA LIS o

To extend the depth and breadth of our work on social media, BETRS M ESERESELE et

we partnered with stakeholders on various campaigns and S AR 2o B BB B T » SE DRI R

initia.ltives. Thes.e inclu.ded Faceb?ok and Instagram live BE A R B IR F - R B B T

sessions, covering topics such as insurance protection, .
Facebook X Instagram E &8 o

budgeting, and managing credit card bills.

E8H2

AR IR N R S N
108 — AR « MeRkia Al -

% SME #EmAE X Whizoo

HR .'n} é
@§ ESG BT
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During the year, we drew the public’s attention to
key financial and money topics through regular
bylined articles and media interviews.
REGEFRNSBERERERERNENIEZEEHMA - =) Fec
hnsgh R ¥ & R R IR R AP SERE RV R © |
Credit: Hong Kong Economic Journal, Sing Tao Daily
IS (ERMEHRE) « (ESBR)

I emenan wumnen
M ESGEAA Y A B

Media interviews
conducted with
IFEC representatives.

REGHNARBZEESR -

L B R

it D

Bylined articles
placed in local
5. hr i ; i : newspapers on
o investment
and money
management
matters.

A niacsh RIEREI
PERXE  AAR
BEEMRER
SHEEHAEN -

: "Ew
ERWEGHSE (Zx-)
wwwifec.org.hk
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It's never too early to help your children embark on
their financial education journey and learn the value of
money management, despite the disruptions brought
about by the pandemic. Use IFEC's resources to turn
everyday activities into fun and meaningful financial
learning experiences for children.

HABBERETRMANEEAR » BEAELH/NERE

FEZIBEKE » REEBIER > THRSHREENEEM -

REENZBERBZFNEHEEZEREBN ZREEN
BT




Targeted Education Programmes
HHE AN SR

With social distancing measures in place, we
turned to various platforms to deliver education
programmes for targeted groups. We substituted
some face-to-face workshops with online channels
for delivering our programmes, including online
workshops, webinars and live broadcasts. This gave
our target audiences more options to learn about
money matters.

EARERIEN T > REGEBIARANRESBIREERHE
BMHEEtE > WU ERIHET » UBRRE BN EET
IRy > SEME LT - M EEBENERES > REIEH
HER2EEMREELERE
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Schoolchildren

Primary schools
The Chin Family Financially Literate Schools

In this programme co-organised with the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, students are given the opportunity to develop
major financial competencies, as outlined in the Hong Kong
Financial Competency Framework. Our objective is to have
participating schools run their own financial education and to
become role models for other schools.

During the year, we supported the participating schools by
helping them develop whole-school action plans and
guidelines, based on the principle of “learn it, teach it, live it,
and embed it".

In the 2020-21 academic year, seven new schools joined
this programme, bringing the total number of participating
schools to 20.

(.", IFEC Chairman Lester Huang delivered the keynote speech
=" atavirtual year-end sharing session, held in November 2020
with 294 participants, including principals and teachers.

REGTFEEMTENR2020F N AR THA EREEVERELIZE
BE o EEHF204 NBENFE - HPEERRKREE

f.] Primary schoolchildren of participating

B

=
2

=

-

T ERBER 2R

I BIBMBFBNIARBEH  HBLEEEER

iiﬂﬁ“tjj”“ﬁl?ﬂ?utﬂﬁgigfiﬂa‘ﬁ%ﬁ > i 177 8h
HEENEREBTABERMIEVHE -

EE%ET&%E&E’MELX °

HPIREREEL 2T -« 08 ~ FHRREA
MEEE - 17812 E5t BN BRFIERER R
BB HETEMES -

?"2020/21**"5‘53E » BECHBRIAGE
SINE BN S RBREIEME 20/ °

schools learn about basic money
management concepts.

ST EREEV BRI N)NBERHEL T
BEHE -
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Targeted Education Programmes

HEBRRENREEE

Other programmes for primary students included the
Financial Literacy Ambassador Programme, held in partnership
with Po Leung Kuk with funding fromn HSBC, and the Teaching
Your Kids about Money Parent-Child Workshop with the Hong
Kong Family Welfare Society, with funding from Prudential
Hong Kong Limited.

Secondary schools
GET $ET GO Money Management Workshop

Co-organised with the Education Bureau and the Hong Kong
Family Welfare Society, this life simulation workshop helps
students acquire money management skills. Our NGO partner
received funding from the HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity
Programme, it has benefited over 200 students during the
year.

$avvy Planner Workshop

This workshop teaches money management concepts to
students with the aid of a board game. Our NGO partner, the
Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups, received funding
from HSBC and delivered the workshop to more than 400
senior secondary students.

Teaching resources

During the year, we adopted different forms of teacher
workshops, including face-to-face workshops, webinars and
pre-recorded videos. Twelve workshops were held for around
500 teachers to prepare them for implementing the resources
we provided in their daily teaching. In a survey conducted in
2020, over 90% of the teachers who attended the workshops
agreed that the teaching resources can help raise teaching
effectiveness.
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For Primary schoolchildren @B /NE4%

Money Management
Gt anEn
A supplementary teaching
resource consisting of 20 topics
matched with the General Studies,
Personal Growth Education,
Moral and Civic Education and
Information Technology curriculum
for cross-curricular teaching.

BERBHMEE20EEE - AUES
B EAREHE BERARHER
ERMRHE SRR - BITRBRRE -

suwn ReRE
e Tl s

For Secondary school students ERSHL4

Money Management
SHREE

A supplementary bilingual
teaching resource covering
eight money management
topics within the Personal,
Social & Humanities Education,
Technology Education or Moral
and Civic Education curriculum.

EEERMBMRE B E
rE MECEEA ~ HERAXHE
HERHBAEERLRBBERE -

Money Mathematics
SEEAYE

A supplementary bilingual
teaching resource with

six topics from the Junior
Secondary School
Mathematics curriculum.

EEEEPEMEETPH
—?ﬂ%%%i Hy7N B ERE o

St

O $avvy Planning § 9

IFEC

4EIER SR A

Investigates common
financial management
issues that secondary

school students may

face in their further

studies and career. '

BEMENhEEEEEn |
B FATAEE S MR R IRE 2
FAgE o

Money Mathematics

&t SHEENS
— A supplementary
B
it . billingual teaching
N =) resource comprising 11
4 1 -—‘_:r‘_‘_‘_z-r topics from the Senior
" Primary School
2 Mathematics curriculum.
] ELEHBBEMIRES/ N
-T-ﬂa%*zﬂ’mﬂilirﬁ ®
Money Issues in &
Liberal Studies e
IRAIEE
A supplementary avag

resource comprising four BDEimy
financial management L
topics for the senior
secondary Liberal
Studies, Personal, Social
& Humanities Education
or Moral and Civic
Education curriculum.

EEWHPBMAEMEER
S ‘ﬁ‘é CEB @R
BA - HBEAXEEHEE
RARBBEERE -

Stock Trading Guru
BIEEA

A supplementary teaching tool for the
Business, Accounting and Financial
Studies curriculum to help educators
teach stock trading in the investment
part of the curriculum.
EEHBHET AR AT « FstEMBHS
2 BEEENBERRFIRENRERENS ©
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Targeted Education Programmes

HEBRRENREEE

Social Worker Financial Literacy Trainer Programme

A workshop was organised with the Child Development Fund
and the Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service to provide training for
social workers for delivering financial education to children
and their parents/mentors. Thirty-two social workers from

19 NGOs were trained.

Tertiary students

Financial management is an important life skill for tertiary
students as it prepares them to deal with potential financial
challenges that may arise from work or in their personal lives
after graduation. We provide tertiary institutions with the
necessary resources to enable their students to acquire
much-needed skills during these challenging times.

Practical Personal Financial Management Programme

In 2020, we offered lectures in face-to-face, webinar and mixed
modes to tertiary institutions. A total of 58 sessions were held
for around 1,900 students at 13 tertiary institutions, covering
topics such as money and credit management, insurance and
investment.
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The Social Worker
Financial Literacy Trainer
Workshop was delivered
in a webinar format.
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Workplace Money Workshop Programme

This programme provided students with the essential financial
life skills needed in the workplace. We conducted all the
workshops in 2020 via 11 webinars, which were attended by
around 500 students.

Personal Finance Ambassador Programme

Our programme co-organiser, St. James' Settlement, provided
this programme with funding from the Hong Kong Exchange
Foundation for training students to become Personal Finance
Ambassadors. The programme included a virtual day camp,
during which students were trained and developed financial
education projects.

The programme started in the 2020 fall semester, with 13
teams from 11 tertiary institutions taking part. The financial
education projects under this programme reached around
5,200 students in the year.

o

2 Workplace Money Workshop Programme.
T AREEMBRMNEIES MR ITESE -

B35 Me% 1 @ TIEShEHE

TR ARERMEARGRIPTREM EE
e SENTHEHEHME LT RAET > 641
FAARKIS00 R BEFMNIZ TR ©

BRI K ERHE

RPN SIEEHERS GRS ESERGMES
ESEBETILHE > DUSIIRERERBEA
BMARE - BREFE—IHE LB ERZEI
WD EEEREBIEMHEEE -

STRIFN 2020 EAKE2HAREE) - HBERBENFR
ARERRIIBEREDH - B2INBEEFBIFR
BRENEMHEEE > FAHERKLS5200%

m o

(@) Studentsdelivered a financial education
" project on campus.
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Targeted Education Programmes

HEBRRENREEE

Working adults

In 2020, the job market came under extreme pressure due to
the COVID-19 pandemic, which caused the unemployment
rate to reach a 17-year high. In such a challenging environment,
financial education has an even greater role to play in helping
working adults make informed and prudent decisions.

Online Learning Programme for employees

Due to social distancing measures, webinars were held instead
of face-to-face sessions for employees. As more adults had
begun adopting flexible working arrangements, we
introduced regular lunch time webinars that provided more
flexibility in terms of time and location. Some employers also
offered this programme to their employees as part of their
wellness programme. Topics included retirement planning,
investment products and concepts, life insurance and parenting
finances. A total of around 2,000 participants took part.

The RetireWise Programme and Manage My Finance
Programme were also offered as webinars, with case studies
and interactive elements such as online polling. The RetireWise
Programme covers the key steps of retirement planning as well
as an analysis of retirement-related financial products, while
the Manage My Finance Programme offers young working
adults practical tips on topics such as budgeting, debt
management, investing and insurance. During the year, a total
of around 800 participants attended these two programmes.

Online Money Management Toolkit

This new toolkit launched in February 2021 helped working
adults identify their top financial challenges during the
COVID-19 pandemic and introduced the relevant IFEC online
tools to help them reach their financial goals.
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The Online Money Management Toolkit
helps working adults identify their top
financial challenges and introduces
relevant tools to address these challenges.
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The toolkit received support from the Employers’' Federation
of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
Management and supporting organisations of the Financial
Literacy Strategy. Employers such as Hong Kong Broadband
Network Limited, Invesco Hong Kong Limited and MTR
Corporation Limited shared the toolkit with their employees
via internal communication channels.

Retirees

Sharp fluctuations in stock markets and fraudulent investment
schemes became more prevalent during the pandemic in
2020. Retirees who are typically less tech savvy were particularly
vulnerable during this period as more activities moved online.

From offline to online

Since April 2020, existing programmes were divided into short
sessions and delivered virtually so that retirees had more
options to learn at their own pace. During the period, we
organised 91 sessions for a total of around 2,700 participants.

Additionally, we ran live broadcasts on social media to deliver
timely financial education messages. In March 2020, we
collaborated with the Institute of Active Ageing of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and invited representatives from the
Professional Insurance Brokers Association to join us at the
live sessions. During these sessions, the representatives
discussed how travel and medical insurance products can
offer protection during the pandemic. In November 2020,

we collaborated with the YWCA Ellen Li District Elderly
Community Centre to conduct live sessions on their Facebook
page on how to identify and prevent financial and investment
scams. These live broadcasts attracted over 80,000 views.
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(.“1 The IFEC Retiree Ambassador Programme received
" recognition from the Jockey Club Age-Friendly City
Partnership Scheme 2020. In this programme, retirees
are trained to provide financial education messages to
the elderly in the community.
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
ERANSE
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Hong Kong 2021

The Financial Literacy Strategy sets out the strategic
priorities and core actions for co-ordinating cross-sectoral
efforts to promote financial literacy and education.
MEIAEE R FIE R BRI R X B8 - LR EBRASE
HEHRIEMENRBREE -
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Financial Literacy Strategy

We have established a financial literacy framework in Hong
Kong, while underlining the importance and relevance of
financial literacy to those socio-economic issues that concern
policymakers and stakeholders.

The Strategy is also part of our vision to ensure that the
people of Hong Kong have good access to reliable financial
education, information and tools to help them make informed
and responsible financial decisions for themselves and their

families, so they can ultimately improve their overall wellbeing.

As the owner of the Strategy, the IFEC takes the lead to drive
its implementation.

The goal is to create an environment that is conducive for
stakeholders to deliver more quality financial education
programmes. The Strategy has three strategic focuses, each
of which is associated with specific core actions:

1. Awareness: To increase the public’s awareness of the
benefits of financial education to their financial wellbeing;

2. Advocacy: To raise the awareness of policymakers and
stakeholders on how improving financial literacy levels can
support their policy areas and work; and

3. Collaboration: To support collaboration among stakeholders

for the delivery of more and higher quality financial education.

Financial education outcomes

The Financial Literacy Strategy looks at five target segments
and key behavioural themes, as illustrated in the table below.
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Preparing financially for
future personal goals
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Saving more for
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Making the most of
limited income
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
BRINEE

Financial Education Coordination
Committee

The Financial Education Coordination Committee (FECC),
which was formed in July 2019, includes representatives from
the government and related organisations, regulators,
financial institutions, industry associations and professional
bodies, and NGOs.

The member organisations support the Strategy by

- aligning their financial education efforts with the Strategy;
« assisting in the delivery of core actions;

« sharing best practices;

- identifying financial literacy issues; and

- providing feedback on the Strategy to the IFEC.

In addition, 119 organisations have pledged their support of the
Strategy by signing the Financial Literacy Charter and
committing to

« raising awareness of the importance of financial literacy;
- providing financial education in their services; and
« championing financial education to policymakers.

During the year, the IFEC engaged stakeholder organisations
to discuss financial literacy issues and to advocate more
involvement in the provision of financial education. The IFEC
also submitted its views to the 2020 Policy Address public
consultation, reinforcing the importance of financial literacy
and financial education for youth and schoolchildren as well
as scam prevention.

In the year ahead, the IFEC will work with stakeholders to
address financial literacy issues specific to different target
segments, especially schoolchildren, youths and the elderly.
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Financial Education Coordination BN ERERET
Committee

Members £8

Organisation #E4&18 Name ##£

Investor and Financial Education Council Dr AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex (Chairperson)
KREENRIEMHELZER Board member
ERFG{AEE LT (£FE) #=RmE
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited KUNG YEUNG Yun Chi, Ann'*
HEISRYT (H3E) BIRAE Deputy Chief Executive

BRIFRE " aey

CHOW Kwok Cheong, Arnold'™2
Deputy General Manager, Investment and Insurance

BEE A sieEE — RERER

CFA Institute/CFA Society Hong Kong POLLARD, Nick *
CFARE /B BIFT SO fmeas Managing Director, Asia Pacific, CFA Institute

ERE* CFAREEARERALE

LEUNG, Mary 4
Head, Advocacy, Asia Pacific, CFA Institute

RRE 4 CFAREEABITLEEMNERE

CHUNG Ka Fai, Franki22
President, CFA Society Hong Kong

EXRIE?* FERTFSUONNSeeR

WONG, Felicia3®2
Director, CFA Society Hong Kong

EEE S RTINS eES

Citi NG Yin Yee, Angel *
{EiEEE Chief Executive Officer, Hong Kong & Macau

(R * FERRMETR

FONG Wai, Wayne #
Head of Corporate Affairs

FIE & pREARARSEHEEE

Consumer Council WONG Fung Han, Gilly *

HEELZED Chief Executive
=HEW * wanE

NG Ka Man, Carmen*2
Head, Consumer Education Division

RRE4L HEEHEHEEE

LAI Cho Yee, Joey>2
Head, Consumer Education Division

RIERES - HEBHEHEIE

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society YIP Yun Wan, Amarantha *
EBREENE Chief Executive
EHE* uns

CHAN Wai Mun, Venus #
Manager, Financial Education Centre

FRES ¢ EMEEHLEE
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
BRINEE

Members £8

Organisation 18418 Name 4

Hong Kong Federation of Insurers HUI Kam Hwai *
EEREEHS Chairman
HEE xR

LEUNG Mai Ki 2
Senior Manager - Communications and Committee

KM L Bl — EHARETES

Hong Kong Monetary Authority SO Ka Pik, Linda *
EBSREER Executive Director (Corporate Services)

BRE * pizes (8HERREE)

LI Chun Kit, Patrick 2
Senior Manager (Education & Publicity)

FEG L BRCE HERED)

Hong Kong Police Force WONG Chi Kwong *
HBERE Chief Superintendent, Commercial Crime Bureau

BHEN * mrRsRsieL

CHAN Ching Sum, Kattie®4

Chief Inspector, Anti-Deception Coordination Centre,
Commercial Crime Bureau

BREFID © HERRREREER

NGAN Hoi lan, Bonnie7 4

Chief Inspector, Anti-Deception Coordination Centre,
Commercial Crime Bureau

EREAR7 * BEERATHEER

HO Kam Yee, Michael #
Chief Inspector, Senior Police Call, Police Public Relations Branch

fEEHS  TRAXMGNEER

Insurance Authority CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement *
1RIGEEER Chief Executive Officer

REILE * 1THAeE

WONG Yuk Ping, Joanne 2
Senior Manager, Market Conduct Division

TEH 4 HRTANSREE

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority CHENG Yan Chee *
I NTESETEIEERS Chief Corporate Affairs Officer and Executive Director

ERREG * WEEAERNTES

HO Fu Ho, Jonathan
Director (External Affairs)

AER 4 £ @ES)

Securities and Futures Commission ALDER, Ashley *
AN EREREE D Chief Executive Officer

BRUESS * THEH

KNEEBONE, David Phillip®4

General Manager, Investor and Financial Education Council

g REEREMREEERREE

LI, Dora®2
General Manager, Investor and Financial Education Council

A A REAEREMEEEEYEKE
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Members Z8

Organisation 4848 Name ##
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
BRINEE

Financial Education Champion

The IFEC organised a virtual Financial Education Champion
award presentation ceremony on 17 December 2020 to
recognise the efforts of financial education providers who
share a common commitment to raise financial literacy levels.
Out of this year's 40 awardees, seven organisations were

also honoured with the Financial Education Champion —
Quality Award.

Teaching Award for Business and
Financial Education

The Teaching Award for Business and Financial Education
(the Award) is jointly organised by the Hong Kong Association
for Business Education and IFEC, and supported by the
Education Bureau. To recognise the contributions of the
teaching community, five Outstanding Teaching Awards were
presented, and one teacher received the Outstanding
Teaching Award for Student Empowerment.

Sinee 'ERAIRIRERSR2019/20,
Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁ!ﬁﬁﬂﬁhﬂﬁﬁa

HEAMSIARNN HRARRESRANASHREEON MARTINE - HAZLEUE
BER (RBE) ulnrlnlt:alIﬁ-xu!nnln-!m\mj (R u i
ST TR

AN T - SR
LLLT

LS -

KREZEHR2020F 12817 R 1T B HER
2021 {8 L HESR LS » IRIGRNDRABTETR
BEFRE IR IHE o TS EERA 40 RIEEF »
Heh tREFEEEE BT ESE - 858
4215 o

EREABMATHIE
ERREMRERLE AEEEEAE SR
MREGAW  WEABRES  URBKE
EEEEER o 5L REVEIAT [ R RBH
HEHBE) - — L HETEIAY (O ERBYRE
BT — ARSI o
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Activities were mostly online based, with a focus on
- digital and online money management, investing, scam
prevention and cybersecurity.

REMNENBEH T EEALRT > UERRS SIS R L2

(":‘) Advertorials with interviews of the six awardees
were published in Ming Pao and Headline Daily
in January 2021 to showcase their contributions.

(BA%R) & (FEIE B #R) 7L 202141 B HIBNSERIB 4
FEHEMEEMBE A EER °

Hong Kong Money Month 2021

During March 2021, the IFEC organised this territory-wide
annual campaign under the theme Digital Finance 360°:;
Opportunities and Risks, reflecting the growing pace of digital
transformation in financial services. The campaign aims to
equip members of the public with the skills and knowledge
needed to navigate today’s rapidly evolving digital world.

The campaign had the support of 60 organisations across a
wide spectrum of industries. Together with the IFEC, a total of
80 financial education initiatives were organised and
promoted to the public and targeted groups.
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On 1 March 2021, we held a virtual launch ceremony that B RAENIERI2021 E3 B 1HE T » RIFE S

was officiated by Mr Ashley Alder, Securities and Futures MEEERERSEOTREREUEE g E
Commission Chief Executive Officer; Mr Lester Huang, IFEC LHEeTIEEEMALE - BE SRS
Chairman; Ms Dora Li, IFEC General Manager; and 7+ WU THEEE 2021 AMEZ a4+
Ms Kandy Wong, Hong Kong Money Month 2021 Ambassador. Ti5 o

The ceremony video was subsequently made available for BB EBEME « Facebook « Instagram
public viewing on the IFEC Facebook and Instagram pages, i YouTube $Ei » SR 5 = QiR R
website and YouTube channel. e o

.\ A promotional video featuring Mr Lester
Huang, IFEC Chairman; Ms Dora Li, IFEC
General Manager; and Ms Kandy Wong,
Hong Kong Money Month 2021
Amlbassador, was broadcast online and via
social platforms calling on the public to
take part in Hong Kong Money Month 2021,
attracting over 4.9 million views.
KEGEBPLRMRTE  NEHREGEE
BRALLE REQRCETHM L T & [EEIEH
B0 AFEEIE R T ERMNEGER R > T8
NRTEE2EEH o FHHEFE40FHERY -

e B

“Together with support from
stakeholders, Hong Kong Money
Month 2021 will help equip the
public with the necessary skills and
knowledge to navigate the rapidly
evolving digital world.”

MERFNENZFT » IEEEMA 2021
1SR REEFIRERNMBERKEE - B

Mr Ashley Alder, SBS, JP REEEEETH R o |
BRIEIELL SBS, IP

Securities and Futures Commission

Chief Executive Officer

EEMPEEHEERERTHER

“Hong Kong is one of the world's
top financial centres, and fintech
development and digital innovation
are key to our success.”

MR RIBRAERPOZ— SRR

ERAUBENHEEENEE o | il
Investor and Financial Education Council
Chairman
BEEEE
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
BRINEE

Highlights of Hong Kong Money Month 2021
r&BEMA 2021 EE5EE

Stakeholders from different sectors supported a range of activities for RETEFH & B2 IEH R E FEAHR R ES

various demographic groups. Through their efforts, a number of GEHRSAT  EHREEBIFILUME NG » THRE
learning opportunities on managing money in today'’s digital age HERSRN D REERITHOE o

were offered to the Hong Kong public.

Money Management Online Workshop
for the self-employed, organised by

Po Leung Kuk and sponsored by the IFEC.
HEREFEN - RESEE > KRERALRN
MEAZRRF (32 251 48 ET1ELS -

Dran S
andwme
AR "8, BY

B 10/3/2021 !
B : 7:30 - S0Cpm

Debt management
online talk, organised
by Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals Healthy
Budgeting Family
Debt Counselling
Centre.

BREE = B il R IR A S E S
ey MERs—h
A EARE o

BEMNALLE SEEEA AN

Money Management Challenge for students in primary,
secondary and tertiary schools, organised by The Boys’
and Girls' Clubs Association of Hong Kong, the Education
Bureau/Hong Kong Education City, St. James’ Settlement
respectively with the IFEC.

BER/EHBEEN BB EHAE - ERSEHEDEKREE
APNBRAERRBE SN TS REBAE ) JEH o

. g BB e S Bm
(a mom -nw

W 43-108 | Wom 13- %Efﬂﬁﬁi ;

as, z@ : ﬁ?%ﬁ_ﬁéﬁ i:ﬁﬁ.rél_é
W=W 18324730 = B | 2021538178
I~ 2 )

77

B3R | FF16— 185455

MEFLE

T -
Ll

dome T e

Catin Tty L KA EA1NE FOUMDATION IFEC
it i ot N

Online consumption

education programme,

) . e Parenting and Digital Money
organised by Caritas dit Th onii Webi f Ki
ey Erisia (W e Credit Thermometer Online ebinar for working parents,

e e Quiz, organised by TransUnion. organised by the IFEC.
B B [ B T o e A T 3 T 0 IRME RN EERES BREERERRRBMORFIEN
BB AR B - R - AR - BFEER
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Global Money Week
portal featuring
money learning
activities and
resources for
schoolchildren and
young people.

®

Online investment scam campaign and anti-scam

online quiz, organised by the IFEC.
KL ERE B AR R EEESRAE o

RES Exva

§ IFEC o

BENSET UN STEM a6 RYTENETN UL W0
R AR - > > BN

RN

WNEMRECICTING AR AT

Loam.Save Eam (WEHIE & ) - LERNN
AR E - EAANMEE RSN
BN - SARNRENREL DO S
-

®

Bm  2021.3.24

BB ?
RERSN!

@ Digital financial services webinar
for retirees, organised by the IFEC.

REGHRARANTRIRBBEFIER RS
M LEERE o

A series of online talks was organised
to discuss the tactics of social media
investment scams, the difference
between virtual and traditional banks,
and how fintech is transforming
personal investment. These talks were
hosted by the IFEC and supported by
media partners and different industry
associations, including the Hong Kong
Association of Banks and Institute of
Financial Technologists of Asia.

REGEM—RIE LEREBE » 5w
HERERRE « ERBTUNERHEHRN
REBFERBY > BESTRERKRESR
HEE  BEEBRTATRENERMRK

MY -

5“ Simple Living online

(J workshop and video
series for women and
retirees, organised by

15 St. James' Settlement

HUBBA Lab, sponsored
by the IFEC.
REERERNE TAE -
LE0E ) MY - KB HER)

M RIBRIE HERE - B RIBK AL
EABEREMATR  snemcn R s [TiGRE SRR 38 48 1
IR EE) o savamma Mo e TR RIEH RF o

20 : A8 {ERE) el B REngse
Heimmi mhrm

KEEWINE (EW-1

CEL

o OTF B
LRI

E A

(MR - AMAERE
RGN RCame oasieit
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
BRINEE

| HARIMRES TR / Be b srmant financial consumer]
"l wmwuﬁm e
| REETI,

®

Financial Literacy
Online Quiz for

Li‘) Be a Smart Financial
~* Consumer Online
Quiz, organised by
the Financial Dispute
Resolution Centre.

ERAL A AR D ST
MBS RN &

B LRIER -
= = i
me o Chae S

secondary school

and tertiary students,
organised by the Hong
Kong Family Welfare
Society and HSBC.
EERERENGEEZAH
BRAESZLESR
5 U380 ) 48 ERIER o

-~ - -

Sine B

=

Is this a
SCAM?

How Can Retirees Prevent Deception

“~“ Online Talk for retirees, organised by Happy
Retired and the Hong Kong Police Force.
LOTFHPEEFBEBEAN > AREMIKM
TR ERABREEE ] ©

Ay I8 EF

®E[

[FasmaA

§ o oA L

ERER A0 ARERERE

Vo Kareg Money Maath 2031 Conssmes [xducsean Tk
fEmEpRAZ >
Online Shopping Dos & Don'ts

2021378108 THIFES
HRORRALRRSH

(’ ) JA Money Sense

= online workshops for
secondary school
students, organised by
Junior Achievement
Hong Kong, sponsored
by the IFEC.
BEEMMEBEEN
KREEEE > HRBEM
HH NIAEMAIE AT
(3%

@CIHMM’

TR LR FTOEE S (WA

BEE, WESE (WA BT PEEEL
A BRI

SHEA Iﬁﬁ ARSI
MRS

Ask the Experts —
Spotting Online Loan
Scams Live Talk for
migrant domestic
workers, organised by
Enrich HK and the Hong
Kong Police Force.

Enrich HK A& BLHE

1 A{F#nﬁ!‘h.'!"‘l:“'}}ﬂ N,
i e B

R A R,
| BN [ANME) Eh, T8

citl citi

@ 8kten

ﬁﬂmgm

3A29 B(EM=)iRSE 55.3_0_9

7B iR T DS D
SHIREESE LRI (Zoom) BT,

"= Online Shopping Dos &

Don'ts Online Talk for
the elderly, organised by
the Consumer Council.
HEEZEFAREENN
MERE R PRI 2D ) 48 L35 RE o

®

SEFLFRAT—FALRN

#FE etnet Youtube
R EE

Online talk for
secondary school
students, organised
by Citi and the Hong
Kong Association for
Business Education.

TEREEEE LN
B AR AR L
P o

Gy
ERapwinn
ZARaan

REE i
CREGE LT "‘m‘ ;
BREMERREE) E‘;‘ “';E

Ask the Exp

Spotting Online Loan Scams
opm. § LIVE Enrich HK

srnMn
HORT B

RINERIEMN TER
SEIMA L RAER L ERERE
BB -

4 March

sdtenrich
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eGuide on Parent-child Money Management
Webinar, organised by Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited.
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O Eme | s _
Personal Finance P
Competition 2021

"Financial Traps Encour
Adolescents - Tricks and Tij

. Video and storybook giveaway on basic
money management concepts, organised
by the Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
and Principal Financial Group.

ERAREENBEAZEEREREESPHND R
BHERIER REAREETED o

@rearcn JUMPSTART 53t 28 =

‘\J Personal Finance Planning Competition
for secondary school students, organised

by The Hang Seng University of Hong Kong.
BEREERBHTHDERMN TR ERILETE o .\ MPF Investment 2021

@}'- an| Qe Seminar, organised by

the Li Ka Shing School
REI S = 7T

QUHKLPACE 30 -

RINER

of Professional and

e_r-rll?ne_‘nl:lllﬂ ;'i\l JA Money Smart Online Continuing Education,
S s =" Workshop for primary B LIeEEE The Open University of
ORHRRN T B A T 7 school students, organised Hong Kong and the

PRIMWEIE 7
= = o SRR MG REETIESR - 080 EEENE )RR
T 1

M= ARSWEN TEeEM A2 I‘lﬂlﬁ
5

Hong Kang { JAHK (W
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‘@ Understanding Your MPF Investment
Online Talk, organised by Gain Miles

Assurance Consultants Limited.

BRPEH AR
HSRTREIRE | A LGB -

BRI A RAS B T BRI

by Junior Achievement
HK and FTLife.
EERMEEBREBRES
INBESHH TIA Money
Smart B2 BIRRA B AR 48 £
HE o

HKMC Chill Talk Show,
" organised by The
Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited.
ERRIGHSERLTEM
B THKMC 8 Talk %751
4o EFRRE o

BCT

HeER

AR

Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority.
EBENHABTRNEEEE
Sinilsaflt AEE R ER
BEMN BRKREIF MZ5 7y
LR EERE o

ﬁ

HKMC YouTube HEEE

,:""_\ Shaping Up! Get Your
" Investment Right!
Webinar, organised
by BCT Group.

BCT REfHEE B2 HY
BCTHRERELHE 881
MPF 48 ES8E o

&
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Cross-sectoral Collaboration
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SBENFHH

EVREEEE

ESG in Credit Webinar Series — Green, Social and
Sustainability Bonds, organised by CFA Institute.
CFAE R TESC BIE W E S E R —
GBEES > AFRERESIHEEEES) °

S-S
BO2EPREEN W@ FuchRatings S ER 03 $i8d
L NN ]
WhoME T @Emmee— G, @ VSA ESG in Credit Webinar Series: R
Green, Social and Sustainability Rl -
[@ The Hong Kong Financial Literacy Bonds “eseee
E Championship 2021 for secondary school i s N
students, organised by iKnow of Hong Kong 12:30 - 14:00 (GMT+8) eeese o
Economic Journal, the Education Bureau Giliuntd . m 4

and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, S crASodiety | i

W HongKond o g 9 @

Hong Kong Education City, St. James'
Settlement and Visa.

HiEREH AR EBTHBIER &BHEEH -
ISR G E Visa AR AP 2E SN M2 B
FEHEE2021) ©
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Digital Financial Literacy Workshop for secondary
school students, organised by The Bank of East Asia
and Hong Kong Association For Business Education.
RERTHEBEXABE 2 AT 2ESHN MBISEMHE
TEth ©

Workplace Money Online
Workshop for tertiary
students, organised by
The Hong Kong
Federation of Youth
Groups and the IFEC,
and supported by HKEX
Foundation Limited.
BEETERERKRETEM
WHEBRZRZREEEZHF
AARE2EMRH TBIHER
T{rEh] ©

RIBRRTIEY

WELTEE L) BEEEE - ARANEREE - TEAE
AREEECANSASANINE - A IEESSTEERD
EeaenEEERTIE "

TG M T X
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Together, We Build a FinFit Generation
Online Talk, organised by HSBC.

TES R NIRRT 2EE Check Check 5t »
B FinFit 48 LS8R o

®

IFPHK
o __...:_N_ﬁflﬂﬁﬂlﬂ!.
[-SHAREM] Banmy
ACNERNENRE  MEREERR RGN -
BSl TRURERS) BE P FPHKE R NS W R 20 E N
FERMNABSTR M PANTRIREGA - 20 - BIERAE - #
BT S EWIEA -
RRTF—RARE LA - ARMDIEE -
HIFPHK #CFPISTTN BEREEIED o RN EE R AN S W sM W N sy

£
B8 K AP e REIR %R F 2021 shkmeneymonth2021

One-minute Financial Planning

=" Video Series, organised by the
Institute of Financial Planners of
Hong Kong.
EBUE R MBGREN T—H 1518
B1RERRT °
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Promotional support

BFHE

Stakeholders also supported
Hong Kong Money Month 2021
by promoting the campaign in
their channels and platforms.
RHOETEBEENRERTAHE
r&#&EIA2021) ©

Prudential
Foundation and
Prudential Hong
Kong Limited
RAEN AN EEE R
R RBRERAE

b AIAZ I
T2 B 2021
B4 A BRUAR B S 2R 0 B

(‘) AIA International

—  Limited
RIBRER (EFR)
BRAF

T fLiEEE
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5D

W particiating i 1okl Moraey Weeh {CAW) 2079
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SCE

March every year, Deaing Swand engaging crilires, 1 and theit

el g socan
5 Mar ks, O TN IEAMAton atsiel e Ivens  Herg Kong
s i IFECS awiile Migs (Rl by INCVitw
War 1 kem s oyt e o' it Pl ey
[BEERINGHE AN (TR viatves MR8 oy A" 3 o s 13 Lawsson b
B e

[ AT TR P TR TR

W R, TRISREEEGEN

A N AR RN JOIN GLOBAL
; MONEY WEEK

W, HSERAETRARMELA ! .

Sex move 22-28 March 2021

wanns O T =m
EHRMARR | = o

.-i"‘l A
R a
v
e T Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public

School of Continuing
Accountants

~~" Education, Hong Kong
Baptist University BEGEHAY

BERREARBREREER

60 stakeholders supported 80 activities and
Hong Kong Money Month resources

60 BfinEZIFEEEMA S8O0EHFBINER

—_—
4,900,000+

video views
=R BB RE8iA 4,900,000

—_—

- Jer P

R s WERAAT |

EPTIRNRNND, B Vi RN SR
WEE R 5 W S, BTTRARY, o
AR . EANSERE!

O W TS S RETRRSR:

Zurich Insurance
(Hong Kong)

BRI RER (58)

@ RIS o izeg shometary Aushoriny 8

onepmortzld 4UIC AR o TN SN LS

Sz 8

(”.\ Hong Kong

" Monetary Authority

BRTHEER

10,000+

page views on the
Hong Kong Money
Month website

F&AIEMA | WILRS
10,000+ B EER &

—_—
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Despite social distancing measures, you still have
many opportunities to stay in touch with loved
ones and participate in stimulating educational
activities. The IFEC has stepped up its efforts to
deliver investor and financial education through
webinars and social media platforms, as well as a
variety of other online media. Learn how you can
improve your financial well-being, make the most
of your money in retirement, and protect yourself
from financial scams.

BN EH L R EER I » RIDARTNEBFAE AR
HRRRIFHE > 2HETMMEENREES -
ERET  REGERBHBBH EBE - HXER
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Research and Evaluation
off 55 B ST (

We recognise the importance of research
and evaluation to assess financial education

s
—

LKL

During the year, we continued to participate in international
studies, conduct topical surveys, and fund academic research
projects through our research grant programme.

Focus of our research and
evaluation work

Our research and evaluation work has three focuses:

1. Monitoring financial literacy levels

In a June 2020 research report released by the OECD/INFE,
Hong Kong came out top in the International Survey of Adult
Financial Literacy. A total of 125,787 adults were polled across
26 countries and economies, including 1,002 adults in the
Hong Kong section of the survey led by the IFEC.

The international study measured overall levels of financial
literacy, as indicated by combined scores on knowledge,
attitudes and behaviour. Hong Kong ranked first in terms
of financial knowledge, sixth in behaviour and fourteenth
in attitude.

62 Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2020-21

needs in Hong Kong. This is critical in helping
the IFEC to identify gaps in financial literacy
among different segments of the population,
as well as understanding what works best

to drive behavioural change. The wealth of
information we gather enables us to shape
the development of IFEC’s education
strategies and ensures our work is making

a difference in how people manage their
personal finances.

REGHEEMEMTEERRFRNLEREMBETE
BRAERENTENTRZE > i TBEBTE
NWEMBEERE
W75% - RRMFHEER BB RAFERRNEE
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REQHEFENEES AERMEMRNF NN
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stRIE B ZERTAREE ©
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1. ER SRR A AEEN KT
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BEEAaEHEM,002IEHBMEA °
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As digital financial services have become an essential part

of personal finance management during the COVID-19
pandemic, we conducted a Digital Financial Services Usage
Study in December 2020 to understand the public’'s adoption
of these services. The findings showed that there has been an
accelerating uptake of digital financial services in Hong Kong.
At the same time, with digital advancement and the growing

popularity of social media, Hongkongers are increasingly being

exposed to the looming threats of online financial scams.

The IFEC will continue to raise public awareness of online
financial scams and help to encourage attitudinal and
behavioural change among Hongkongers about such scams
and how to protect oneself against these threats.

2. Evaluating the effectiveness of our work

In 2020, we evaluated the IFEC’s education programmes and
resources through

A pre-post evaluation of the workplace financial wellness
programme, Blended-learning: Retirement Planning; and

A survey of teachers who attended IFEC’s workshops in the
past few years to learn their views on our customised
teaching resources for different subjects in primary and
secondary schools.

The evaluation showed that our programmes and resources
are well received among participants and that they promote
good knowledge gain.

We also continued to conduct regular surveys to track public
awareness and perceptions of our mass media campaigns and
teaching resources.

3. Encouraging academic research

In 2020, we funded two projects on the topics of retirement

savings and the financial education needs of ethnic minorities.

These projects are being undertaken by researchers from the
City University of Hong Kong and Hong Kong Baptist
University, respectively.

A research project on how senior adults manage their
finances, which was funded by an earlier IFEC research grant
from 2019, was completed in Decemlber 2020.

A new call for proposals will be announced in the fourth
quarter of 2021.

TBHRTERIEME > TREREZHIEIEMARE
ML 2020F12 BT NS RS R
BRAE) > UTEHREAEIEIRM RS
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
HiGHhERBHERSE

Operating in an increasingly
globalised world, it is all the
more important to maintain
close contact with our local and
international stakeholders

and partners to facilitate the
exchange of ideas and adoption
of international best practices
for promoting financial literacy.

FHFAWERKCMNIRIET > HMAE
TR B R0 EMBHERES
RERGF > REWEEMED > BE
BRI R ER 40 [ P B &G o

Through our participation in various working groups, we have KREGFB2ERENIENE > ARFEE
developed keen insights into evolving global challenges. This HRERIKE > B IHEHEER » LIS
has better equipped us to adapt our educational resources in EHBTHTRNEE o

response to local needs.
£2020% » HRMEETIREE SIBMEE S

In 2920, we continued Fo seek the ad\{ice of a numbe.r of MEFREE » ML ESE MANEE > U
advisory groups on our investor and financial education SRS o

initiatives and research needs while also looking for
opportunities for collaboration.
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Advisory Group:
Financial Education for Schoolchildren

Members Z&

SEEMHEHRE

LIN, Chun Pong (Convenor)

HK Association of the Heads of Secondary Schools

EHEI (BEAN) ERAPERES

CHAN Hong Education Bureau

WRER )|

CHAN Suk Yee, Rebecca Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
(03 EEAREENG

CHAN Wing Chung, Regent Hong Kong Tang King Po College
MRk EAMREE

CHIU Chi Fai, William
1BEE

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

BELBESRITERAR

CHOI Cheuk Wai, Vivian

Junior Achievement Hong Kong

£52 SEMMEAL

FONG, Wayne Citibank HK

Gl TEHskEE

KWOK Chiu Kwan, Henry Kowloon Region School Heads Association
i a2k NI RIS

Dr LAM Wai Lim, William Education Bureau

MR EREL HER

LEUNG Yuen Wai, Annie Education Bureau

2= BER

POON Tak Cheong, Raymond Committee on Home-School Co-operation
BES REHSZREFEEELZEE

YIP, Damian (Ex-officio Member)

Investor and Financial Education Council

B (BRES8) KREENEMHBEELZER
LAM Kit Yung, Stefan (Secretary) Investor and Financial Education Council
WS (E) KREENREMHBELZER

The appointment term is from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2021.
EHAEN2020F 4 B1HE20215F12831H
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
BN ERBERESE

Advisory Group: AESLE AT EANDE

Financial Education for Tertiary Students

Members &8

Dr NG Wai Cheong, Artie (Convenor)
RESEL (BEA)

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
School of Professional Education and
Executive Development

BERETARBFREESR

CHAN Fuk Lung
BRiERE

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Healthy Budgeting Family Debt
Counselling Centre

REE = R ERE R SRS 0

CHOW Tsz Yue, Euphemia (from 1July 2020)
2R4R1E (202047 B1H{E)

The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology

BEARRKE
LAI Leung Ho, Niki St. James' Settlement
REYW EHEENE
Dr LAM Wai Keung, Wallace Vocational Training Council
wEsiEL Bz

Dr LAM Wai Leung (to 30 June 2020)
HigEREL (E2020F6 830H1E)

The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology

HEERKE

Dr LEE Chi Chung, Eliot

HKU SPACE Community College

FERELE BERARSZHBEM

LEUNG Mai Ki The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

ZRIE BERRMERS

LUNG Ken Fung, Ken Octopus Holdings Limited

REBlZE JEBIERBRAF

Dr WONG Chak Sham, Michael City University of Hong Kong

FEHKEL BRI AL

WONG Ni Nau, Shirley The Bank of East Asia, Limited

=ik REIRITHIRAE

YEUNG Nga Yuk Working Family and Student Financial

EHE Assistance Agency
ERRERBLEENEHE

YIP, Damian (Ex-officio Member) Investor and Financial Education Council

B (ERES) REENIEMHBELZEY

YAU Kwan Pang (Secretary) Investor and Financial Education Council

EREEHE (FEE) REENIEMHBELZESR

The appointment term is from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2021.
1EHAEH2020F 4 A1HE20215F12831H
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Advisory Group:
Financial Education for Working Adults

Members Z&

ERATEBRHESEHE

CHOW Lai Sim, Florence (Convenor)

Employers' Federation of Hong Kong

FREE (BEAN) BERREHAS

CHAN Yiu Lun, Alan Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

TR e BEAREENG

CHAN Yuen Ling Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
TR YIS BHIELAREHEEIER

Dr CHEUNG Yu Ha Hong Kong Baptist University

RFAE L BEHREKE

KWONG Wing Ki The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
BR SR ERAEEHE

LEE Ming Gin Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong
ZHALE BARAVBRAMES

LEUNG Tsui Wan
2BIR

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare
Council Limited

EBEQNTEMHERRAF

LI Tin Kei, Dave
FXRE

Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
Management

BEBEANNEREESS

LI Tze Yan, Janet

Hong Kong Retirement Scheme Association

F¥R BERKGEIGE

WONG Yuk Ping, Joanne Insurance Authority

EFES RBEEER

YIP, Damian (Ex-officio Member) Investor and Financial Education Council
B (EREE) BREEREMHERES

LAU Wing Kam (Secretary) Investor and Financial Education Council
213k (R3) KREEREMHERES

The appointment term is from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2021.
EHAE2020F 4 B1HE20215F12831H °
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
BN ERBERESE

Advisory Group:
Financial Education for Retirees

Members &8

LAU Ka Shi (Convenor)
2IE=6s (BEAN)

BUEALTEBRHEHHE

BCT Group (BCT Financial Limited /
Bank Consortium Trust Company)

BCTiREHEEME (REERBEIRAE / IRBHSEHIIRAQE)

Dr BAI Xue (from 18 August 2020)
BHE#Lt (H2020F8 518 HitE)

Department of Applied Social Sciences,
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

EEETRSBEBAULINER

CHAN How Chi

Committee on Elder Academy

i E A Development Foundation
RESGHERESSEY

Dr CHAN Mou Fung Noble Apex Wealth Limited

PRS- HIERIEERAT

HO Kam Yee, Michael Hong Kong Police Force

fal&ia BRAEBE

HO Mei Yee The Salvation Army

(BES =

Professor LAl Wing Leung, Daniel (to 17 August 2020)
Rk S=HI% (£202058H17HLL)

Institute of Active Ageing, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

BAET KEER S
LEE Kwok Hoi Shimba Digital Limited
FEE MBI 4RAE R B PR A E]
LEUNG Sze Wan, Angela The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
RESEE BRREHRSERAR
LIM Ka Yuk, Paul Hang Seng Bank
MEREE B4 R1T
Dr LOU Weiqun Sau Po Centre on Ageing, The University of
RIEEE L Hong Kong
BEARARSFBEEFHRTFHOL
YEUNG Ming Yin Happy-Retired Company Limited
R E BEERTRE
YIP, Damian (Ex-officio Member) Investor and Financial Education Council
Bl (BRZE8) KREENEMHELZES
CHOI Suk Mun, Anny (Secretary) Investor and Financial Education Council
s (E) REENEBMHEELZE®

The appointment term is from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2021.
EHA2020F 4 A1HE2021F12831H
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Research Grant Committee

Members £8

LI, Dora (Chairperson)

MAEBHEE G

Investor and Financial Education Council

=ik (EFF) BREERIEMHERES
Professor TSE, S.K., Samson Department of Social Work and Social
S RS Administration, The University of Hong Kong

BEERBUHETERUHETHER

Professor CHENG W.W., Joseph
R R

Department of Finance, CUHK Business School,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong

ERPNAEEHERTRMER

CHIU Chi Fai, William
BEE

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

HEELBESRITARAR

LEUNG T. W,, Tracy

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui
Welfare Council Limited

ERBEQNGTEMHMERIRAF

The appointment term is from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021.
EHAR2018 F 4 B1HE20214F3H831H

Local and international exchanges

In November 2020, we were invited to speak at the MPF20
Masterclass: Rethinking Retirement webinar series organised
by Gain Miles. Topics included the role that investor and
financial education can play in retirement planning and how
employers can embed financial education in an organisation’s
staff policy as well as the benefits of engaging employees on
financial education.

At a money management webinar organised by Bank of China
(Hong Kong) in March 2021, we were invited to share how the
IFEC took an edutainment approach to help families with
schoolchildren continue learning in the age of electronic
money.

We also maintain ongoing dialogues to learn and discuss
best practices in financial education with our overseas
counterparts. These included the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development International Network on
Financial Education (OECD/INFE) and the International
Organization of Securities Commissions (IOSCO) Committee
on Retail Investors (Committee 8).

Zis 3t e [ PR 32 57

H2020F N A » REGEBH BERE SRR
BIEATE Y NFE$ 20 Masterclass © Bk
B A L RETEE > BEREREENE
MHEBICGRNREITNAE - BENAFERME
BRIAKEBNE THR » UNARERHUEMH
BHIETER o

Ite5h > FAEBRLFERERTT (F8) K20215F
SASMNELEE > DEREGUMAUEHIR
KHE > MEABNRENSEREPIBTNEE
&R > U fIEE FERETRMEMRE
BIERL o

REGTAEFZLMNEBRIER 0 28
SERIER B RV o BB EEKE SR
BRER (AR /EREREMAEEE
UREREESAMTEREERSE (C8F
88) -
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
BN ERBERESE

OECD/INFE

The IFEC attended and presented at the OECD/INFE online
meetings on digital financial education and issues associated
with the ageing population. These sessions were held in
October 2020.

The IFEC is a member of the OECD/INFE Working Group's
Global Money Week, an annual campaign to promote the
importance for young people to acquire the knowledge, skills
and abilities to make sound financial decisions. This year’s
campaign took place in Hong Kong from 22-28 March 2021.
During a webinar in December 2020, we shared ideas and
practical examples with our peers on how we developed
online resources and activities for children and youths in
Hong Kong.

IOSCO Committee 8

On 5 August 2020, the IFEC took part in the IOSCO Committee
8 World Investor Week planning call and best practice sharing
session. We shared some of our latest digital learning tools,
programmes and resources with members.

On 5 October 2020, the HKEX and IFEC held an online
bell-ringing ceremony to kick start IOSCO World Investor
Week and explored how organisations in Hong Kong can work
together to enhance the financial wellness of their employees
and the public. A number of leading practitioners shared their
insights and experiences on how they integrated financial
literacy into their organisations’ agendas. Over 120 attendees
took part in a discussion on financial education as part of
corporate responsibility.

The IFEC also participated in and spoke at the 11th IFIE-IOSCO
Global Investor Education Conference, a virtual event held in
November 2020. The theme of this conference was Financial
Capability at a Crossroads: Building Financial Resiliency
Programmes and Strategies for a Changed World. During the
conference, we discussed how the IFEC transformed and
adapted our educational resources in response to the
changing needs of the Hong Kong population. We also
provided input to the IOSCO Sustainable Finance Task Force
Work Stream 2 Survey on Investor Education and Sustainable
Finance.

As a member of the IOSCO Committee 8 Investor Education
on Crypto Assets working group, the IFEC provided comments
for the final report, which was submitted to the IOSCO Board
for approval.

In March 2021, we presented at a virtual meeting on the
education work around recent market developments,
including the rise of fraud cases during COVID-19.
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i1

GAIN MILES

IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li discussed the role investor
and financial education can play towards a secure retirement.

REQEKEBEFTHU L LTRREEREMHEERERAREESE
BBRIER o

SE TS

Speakers Mr Kenneth Kok of HKEX, Mr Brian
Hui of HSBC Hong Kong, Ms Florence Chow
of HKT/Employers' Federation of Hong Kong
and Dr William Lo of Junior Achievement

Hong Kong joined the panel discussion on
financial education as part of corporate
responsibility moderated by Head of
Marketing and Programmes of the IFEC,

Mr Damian Yip.

BEER BRI E « ESE BT RITGE -
FREN/FREEIHSENEBRELTMSERT
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A most unusual 2020
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IFEC General Manager Ms Dora Li discussed
the importance of teaching children about
money in the digital age.
BREGREKEFHUZ T O =B REE/ AR
EMNEEMY o

Living in an increasingly
digital world

Head of Commmunications and Resources
of the IFEC, Ms Jill Tan, presented at the
11th IFIE-IOSCO Global Investor Education
Conference on digitalisation and

financial learning.
BREGEARBMEERIERTEL T HFEHREE
EHEERRE/ EISRE ARG E
BEHEGE > FBIBNKIEMHAEEEE -
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Directors’ Report

EFHRSEE

The directors present herewith their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021.

Principal place of business

Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 54/F,

One Island East, 18 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the IFEC are to lead financial literacy
in Hong Kong by promoting and delivering free and impartial
financial education resources and programmes to equip
people with the skills to make well-informed financial
decisions; the IFEC leads the Financial Literacy Strategy to
create a conducive environment for stakeholders to deliver
more quality financial education to various segments of the
Hong Kong population.

Financial statements

The financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2021
and the financial position as at 31 March 2021 are set out in the
audited financial statements presented on pages 78 to 92.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

HUANG, Lester Garson (Chairman)

AUYEUNG Pak Kuen, Rex

CHEUNG Wan Ching, Clement

CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher (Appointed on 1 March 2021)
HO Fu Ho, Jonathan

KNEEBONE, David Phillip (Retired on 21 September 2020)
LAU Man Man, Lisa

LEUNG Sze Ho, Louis

LI Yuen Chow, Dora (Appointed on 18 May 2020)

SO Ka Pik, Linda

WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew
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Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the IFEC is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except for a contract of employment with Ms Li Yuen Chow,
Dora, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the IFEC, or any of its holding company or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the IFEC
had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PwC as auditors of the IFEC is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

HUANG, Lester Garson
13 May 2021

SRTE (RS

AREREZEREFNEETZBEKRX
(IRIEE BN TEGIE 4691&) KAFERBE#
SRR °

EFNRG - ZHNGAONER
FREUEAEMN L L ERMMIA AN EEE
REERSRIEEEAE MR - LRFEERN
RES  HERAFIRARNBADEATHS
REREGEEREEARSNEERS « T
REH ©

e

BEBOKEEFTMEFARKESER > BT
ENRIREERET - REERERSRTH
BERE L REBEZEREIRKEGNE
B AR TG IRBBMBRES ©

BEERAE

HERA
2021458138

REENEMHELZEEF2020-21F8K 73



Independent auditor’s report

38 3L #% SR BT 4R
B REENEMBEEZEGNRE

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)
(EEBFMILNERBRAR)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Investor and Financial Education
Council (IFEC) set out on pages 78 to 92, which comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2027,

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which included a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of IFEC as at 31 March 2021,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (HKSASs) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of IFEC in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code), and we

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,

in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing IFEC's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate IFEC or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Investor and Financial Education Council

B ZBER S
R REEREMHETEZETNRE

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)
(EEBEMAIINIERERATE)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of IFEC's
internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on IFEC's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause IFEC to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 May 2021
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

B K H fth 2 U R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HZE202143 831 A LLERE (811 : #m)
Note 2021 2020
M=E $ $
Income KA
Recoveries from the Securities and KBS RIAEEHER
Futures Commission 2(d) 68,693,616 68,866,915 ZBgWEINFRIE
I&;énses 777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 s
Premises expenses MAERT
Rent 2,424,600 2,880,000 ik
Rates, management fees and others 448,409 459,471 =i~ SEENREM
Staff costs 4 29,028,041 28,207,042 ANEEH
Education programmes 5 33,422,973 33,490,951 HEER
Other expenses 5 3,313,623 3,797,945 Hiht
Depreciation 7 55,970 31,506 e
68,693,616 68,866,915
Result for the year before taxation - - FEGOESE
Taxation 3 - = HR1E
Result and total comprehensive income
for the year - - EEXEREZEWALE

The notes on pages 81 to 92 form part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of financial position

MEBRRER

As at 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2021438318 (811 : #T)

Note 2021 2020
Bft5 $ $
Non-current assets JEREBNEE
Fixed assets 7 191,628 45,356 EE&E
Currentassets e LI
Prepayments and other receivables 8 810,225 2,172,016 FE{T I8 R Eh FE W FRIE
Cash at bank 23,011,956 21,957,097 RITIRE
23,822,181 24,129,113
Current liabilites e
Accrued charges and other payables o 14,868,601 12922066  FEiEANEMAEEIE
Balance with the Securities and HESNIAEEHER
Futures Commission 9 9,145,208 11,252,403 EZEENHIE
24,013,809 24,174,469
Net current liabilities (191,628) (45,356) HEBAEZFRE
Total assets less current liabilites - - AEGEATHAR
Net assets - -  BESE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
13 May 2021 and signed on its behalf by

HUANG, Lester Garson  WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew

Chairman Director

The notes on pages 81 to 92 form part of these financial
statements.

2021 FE5 B 13 HHREERIZENRFAIE »
THRTFHALTHRREE .

HEA BEE
£S5 S

BIREF R BENMERAMBIRRERN—
=il
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Statement of cash flows

RERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HZE2021E3 831 A ILERE (811 : Bt)

2021 2020
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities SREHEIBMRERE
Result for the year - - FEXES
Depreciation 55,970 31,506 he
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and FE(T FRIE M EL At FE R IERY

other receivables 1,361,791 (1,776,458) A/ (FE)
(Decrease)/increase in balance with HESNRPEEREREEEN

the Securities and Futures Commission (2,107,195) 4,606,487 IR GEA) /58
Increase/(decrease) in accrued charges FESHE B M E A FRIERY

and other payables 1,883,035 (2,983,457) 0/ GRA)
Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities 1,193,601 (121,922) RE/ (AR EEESHMNIREFE
Cash flow from investing activities REFHFSIBNRERE
Fixed assets purchased (138,742) - BAEBTEE
Net cash used in investing activities (138,742) - FBARREEEFNIRE R
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RENERREEEN

cash equivalents 1,054,859 (121,922) N/ Ge) JB%a
Cash and cash equivalents

at the beginning of the year 21,957,097 22,079,019 FEBBERENERIRESIER
Cash and cash equivalents

at the end of the year 23,011,956 21,957,097 FELXKERRERERIRESIER
Analysis of the balance of cash and

cash equivalents R REFRSIEENEIRS I
Cash at bank 23,011,956 21,957,097  $R1TIRE

The notes on pages 81 to 92 form part of these financial

statements.

EIEEF R BNMERAMBFRRERN—

oy o
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Notes to the financial statements

Bt 755 ¥R 2R B 5F

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HZE 202143831 ALLERE (81 © #B7m)

(a)

Status and principal activities

Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) was
incorporated on 19 October 2012 in Hong Kong under

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as a company
limited by guarantee and not having a share capital.

The address of its registered office is 54/F, One Island East,
18 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the IFEC are to lead financial
literacy in Hong Kong by promoting and delivering free
and impartial financial education resources and
programmes to equip people with the skills to make
well-informed financial decisions; the IFEC leads the
Financial Literacy Strategy to create a conducive
environment for stakeholders to deliver more quality
financial education to various segments of the

Hong Kong population.

Under the provisions of the IFEC's Articles of Association,
every member shall, in the event of the IFEC being wound
up, contribute to the assets of the IFEC an amount not
exceeding $10. At 31 March 2021, the IFEC had 1 member.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. Significant accounting policies adopted by
the IFEC are set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the IFEC. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
IFEC's results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented. We have not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

(a)

s R FEES

REEREMBBEES (REE) 2—K
15201210 B19 BIRBE B (A BEH)
B ERAEFRERAR - HEMimE
BRAINEBRSBERKISREBERP O
5418 o

REGNTEEZHEHREBTRIEY
MFAMENNER - BREERIEHEE
MFTRENERHEFE RN > A
FISLAEEERETS - UEHBRER
BIRE - REGHRIEMEESIREE
AREMEGSENNRE  ®MATEHLE
TR EREESEENENHE -

RZG(SRMA) IEXETR » kKEE
—BE% > BaMENANERMTEE
THETHRBETREGHNEE - 120215
3A3IH > RERFE—RME °

FEGFER

BRER

FYHRRBRBITEERN (EBMT
REER) MER - (FBMHREZEL)
—AEEERGS M AGRTNFIEER
BER(EBMBRSER)  (FEBGE
A) Re52fE - EBNREARUURES
(REMERFD NEK - REGRMNTES
STECRIEERINT o

BRI AGES T ETERZEN
Ef SR E R EM A HIE R RAB
I RAEMESTRI (BB BREER) -
BRI R EHREGUNARRIZT
ER S ERENRER M ERELE
EATE - WM ERAEATETN S
HAR 1A R RUBORT RS2 72 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements
A 7 ER R Bt 5

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE2021F3A31ALEFE (B : #o)

2.
(b)

(c)

(d)

82

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

The IFEC prepares these financial statements on a going
concern basis notwithstanding that the stated current
liabilities are in excess of the stated current assets at 31
March 2021. The Securities and Futures Commission (SFC),
the ultimate holding entity, has given an undertaking to
continue to provide such financial assistance as is
necessary to maintain the IFEC as a going concern.

We have prepared these financial statements using the
historical cost as the measurement basis. No statement of
changes in equity has been prepared as there have been
no changes during the year.

We prepare the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs which require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. We make estimates and
associated assumptions based on historical experience
and various other factors that believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

We review the estimates and underlying assumptions on
an ongoing basis. We recognise revisions to accounting
estimates in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Recognition of income

We recognise income in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the IFEC and we
can measure reliably the revenue and cost.

Recoveries from the SFC

The IFEC's income is reimbursement from the SFC for
expenditure incurred. We recognise recoveries from the
SFC on an accrual basis.

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2020-21
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Employee benefits

We accrue salaries and allowances, annual leave and
contributions to defined contribution plans in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by employees.

Fixed assets and depreciation

We state fixed assets at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (see note 2(l)).
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. We charge
depreciation to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Personal computers and software

We capitalise subsequent expenditure only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
fixed assets. We recognise all other expenditure in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as an expense as incurred.

We recognise gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of fixed assets, being the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on the date of retirement

or disposal.

We review the assets’ residual values and useful lives and
adjust if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, we
consider that the following are related parties of the IFEC:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the IFEC if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the IFEC;

(i) hassignificant influence over the IFEC; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the IFEC or the IFEC's parent.

2. FESHEE @

BEEF

B EEFE N2 - BFERMY
SUE HRET BB R TE R S R HARRAARTS
NEENIZRETREETA ©

EE&EERITE
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IR ERE (5 RMEE2(1) 5K - EEmMZ
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HRIWREE 5%
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HAAEEREEEEENEERAX

Bl INE RAEE & E S RBVE B b o
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BUNREI(E o ISP E BB I ELR
EIRmMEMEERERAER B o

B ERENHEEEEERBMES
BRI ZIEE N HERRS PR A
IREEZENEREERE » WHRHRENHE
B IR m M E M 2 I = T LARESE ©
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(i) FEHIEE S =75 HREE
BEE ;

(i) HREGABEANTEN ; N
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REENEMHELZEE2020-21F8H 83



Notes to the Financial Statements
A 7 ER R Bt 5

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE2021F3A31ALEFE (B : #o)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the IFEC if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(Vi)

(vii)

The entity and the IFEC are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of

a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the IFEC or an
entity related to the IFEC.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the IFEC or to the IFEC's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(h) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

84

We translate foreign currency transactions during the year
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the

transaction dates. We translate monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. We recognise exchange gains and losses
on translation in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank.
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2.
0))

(k)

M

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Prepayments and other receivables )]
We state prepayments and other receivables initially at

their fair value and thereafter at amortised cost less
impairment losses. We hold the receivables with the

objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and

measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

We assess on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with financial instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

(k)
Accrued charges and other payables

We state accrued charges and other payables initially at
fair values and thereafter at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be material, in which case
they are stated at cost.

. N 0
Impairment of non-financial assets
We review the carrying amounts of the IFEC’s assets at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is any objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, we estimate the asset’s recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its net selling price and
value in use. We recognise in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the recoverable
amount as an impairment loss whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

We reverse an impairment loss in respect of an asset in a
subsequent period if the circumstances and events that
are objectively linked to the write down or write-off cease
to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new
circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable
future. We reverse an impairment loss only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that we should have determined, net of
depreciation and amortisation, if we had not recognised
any impairment loss.

FEFHEE @

TR FRIA R H fth FE U 7R IR
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A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
A 7 ER R Bt 5

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE2021F3A31ALEFE (B : #o)

2‘

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

86

We recognise a provision in the statement of financial
position when the IFEC has a legal or constructive
obligation of uncertain timing or amount as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that the IFEC will require an
outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, we disclose the obligation as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. We also disclose possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the IFEC.

Lease liabilities included fixed lease payments less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payment based
on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable
under residual value guarantees and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease. The lease liabilities are
initially measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted at the IFEC's incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date. The
lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
using the incremental borrowing rate on the remaining
balance of the lease liabilities for each period. The lease
liabilities are reduced by an amount equal to the lease
payments made less the finance costs charged for

that period.

The right-of-use assets are measured at the amount equal
to the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted
for any prepaid lease payments, lease incentives received,
any initial direct costs or reinstatement provisions relating
to that lease. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2. FESHEE @

(n) HE @)
S E R EEEEERERTS RN
R B AR TE B IR PR B o
SHRTRE AT E IR 12(E 8 AR o

. 3. RIAE
Taxation
a) HREZRLEERRAIE > Hit
(@) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been (@ T Py
made as the IFEC did not have any taxable profit. ks BUEE
5 ﬁ\ //_ Z I &5
(b) There is no deferred tax liability or unrecognised 12) &ézig{ﬂﬂﬁgﬁlﬁgﬁj
deferred tax assets. RIEBHEEIRIRHE
Staff costs 4. \EEH
2021 2020
$ $
Salaries and other benefits 27,368,770 26,545,843 e NEMER
Contributions to defined contribution plan 1,659,271 1,661,199 HREHEHETRNRIHI
29,028,041 28,207,042

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

RIBEEE (QEEE) $B383(1) - &
(B (RBEESFTER) RO FE28
BRE  EEMEIRENT ¢

2021 2020
$ $
Directors' fees - - ExEME
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,818,601 2,069,294 e R NEYN G
Discretionary pay 337,450 588,140 B &N
Retirement scheme contributions 87,000 194,613  EBIKETEIHR
2,243,051 2,852,047
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B FS SR R M 5T

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE2021F3A31ALEFE (B : #o)

5.

88

Education programmes 5. ¥E1EB
2021 2020
$ $
Campaigns and communications 15,151,624 15,083,475  JEEIAEE
Digital and social channels development SRR E BB EN
and maintenance 3,178,513 4,154,873 RIS T
Marketing programmes 7,929,783 9,765,826 HEFBIRGE
Resources and content 1,341,659 1,037,066 HREEAR
Research and evaluation 2,051,184 2,105,469  WAFEAFE(E
Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy 3,770,210 1,344,242 EAERIBM AR EE RIS
33,422,973 33,490,951
Other expenses 6. Hfthzi
2021 2020
$ $
Auditor's remuneration 187,132 196,268  ZEENENE
Professional and other services 820,486 807,735 HENHMRZER
Publicity and external relations 553,482 684,262 EENHINEF
Information systems and services 1,533,526 1,838,371 EGEY N b
General office and insurance 169,997 128,450  —MMAERS MERER
Training and development 49,000 142,859 IR
3,313,623 3,797,945
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7.

Fixed assets 7. BE&EE
Personal
Office computers
equipment  and software Total
WMAERE  EABEREMG Hst
$ $ $
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2020 13,666 1,232,371 1,246,037 72020F 48 1H
Additions 112,257 89,985 202,242 wE
At 31 March 2021 125,923 1,322,356 1,448,279 2021538 31H
Accumulated depreciation RRERE
At 1 April 2020 13,400 1,187,281 1,200,681 72020F 48 1H
Charge for the year 20,845 35,125 55,970 FERE
At 31 March 2021 34,245 1,222,406 1,256,651 202138 31H
Net book value IRELEE
At 31 March 2021 91,678 99,950 191,628 202138 31H
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2019 13,666 1,232,371 1,246,037 HK2019F4H1H
Additions = = = wNE
At 31 March 2020 13,666 1,232,371 1,246,037 202038 31H
Accumulated depreciation RERE
At 1 April 2019 12,340 1,156,835 1,169,175 20195 4H1H
Charge for the year 1,060 30,446 31,506 FEITE
At 31 March 2020 13,400 1,187,281 1,200,681 202038 31H
Net book value IRELEE
At 31 March 2020 266 45,090 45,356 72020 3H31H

Prepayments and other receivables

Prepayments and other receivables are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable within one year from

the reporting date.

8. FAMFRIERE fthEUTRIR

RNREREtERIRREER
BAENATHREARER—FRHEEN -

BREERBMHEZEE2020-21F8K 89



PAE5 SR R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE2021F3B3VHILFE (B : BT)

Notes to the Financial Statements

9. Accrued charges and other payables /
Balance with the Securities and Futures

920

Commission

All accrued charges and other payables are unsecured
and expected to be settled within one year.

Balance with the Securities and Futures Commission
represents funds transferred from the SFC to support the
IFEC's operation. The balance is unsecured and with no

repayment date.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities of the IFEC’s current liabilities at the end of
the accounting period, which are based on contractual

9. FEstEAREMETRIEA/
BESREEHERZEEN

FRIE

PREEsTBRREMBENRERRIERK
TR —EAEE -

HESMEEHERZEFNMEAR
BEEHRTREZGUZF[HEENE
& o BRAFED BIRR R EERHR

TRFTIREGEE AR SRR
RBBENRBFSOEER - 2REE
RENNRITBERERERIREZE AL

undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the IFEC ARERNENRFEE
can be required to pay:
2021
Within
3 months or
Carrying on demand No stated
amount 3{ABAZEIEAE maturity
IREE HEKREERE \|EEIHAR
$ $ $
Accrued charges and
other payables 14,868,601 14,868,601 -  EirERKREMECRIE
Balance with the Securities BB S NAEERER
and Futures Commission 9,145,208 - 9,145,208 HEENHIE
24,013,809 14,868,601 9,145,208
2020
Within
3 months or
Carrying on demand No stated
amount  3{EBREIHADY maturity
IREE 1REKPERZ AT EEEEIRAA
$ $ $
Accrued charges and
other payables 12,922,066 12,922,066 -  ErERKEMECRE
Balance with the Securities B NAEEHRER
and Futures Commission 11,252,403 - 11,252,403 HZEENHIE
24,174,469 12,922,066 1,252,403

Investor and Financial Education Council Annual Report 2020-21



10. Leases 10. A8

The IFEC has not recognised any right-of-use asset as all BESRERMMERESE » BAREM
leases are short-term in nature. EEEBEHAME o

During the year, the expense relating to a short-term lease Ry » —IARSTHRTE S RN 2,825,700
was $2,825,700 (2020: $3,300,000) which was shown as 7% (20204 : 3.300,0007T) » TEiB%
premises expenses in the statement of profit or loss and BEMAEREE FmEE AR AT TS

other comprehensive income.

e

. Rel rty tran ion .
1. Related party transactions n. AELSE

There are related party relationships with the SFC, the 1B B A P R B S T
ultimate holding entity. In addition to the related parties < E RIS R Best s B RS

relationship disclosed in elsewhere in these financial Bﬁ?&zt,ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁé?jﬁfmgﬁﬁ}&:@gmia@
statements, the IFEC has the following related party HRRS > RERBERUTHRELRS

transactions. . _
TR BREGMHEEEZ12,825,7007T

During the year, the IFEC paid $2,825,700 (2020: $3,300,000) B AZEM AT H (20204

premises expenses, $432,000 (2020: $384,000) 3,300,0007%) ~ 432,000 eI & 5T KA

accountancy and office administration support fees, ETHZIESE (20204 : 384,0007T) *

$347,000 (2020: $310,000) human resources and training 347,000 TR A N BB R 1| 18 &

support fees and $720,000 (2020: $1,032,000) IT support (20204 : 310,0007T) » M 720,00075C

and maintenance fees to the SFC. GRS S E R RS (20204
1,032,0007%) ©

All members of key management personnel are directors

. L . 4 -
of the IFEC, and their remuneration is disclosed in note TESEA BN ARESNEE -

HMEERMEE4RIRE -

REENREMHELZESG2020-21F8K 91



Notes to the Financial Statements
A 7 ER R Bt 5

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE2021F3A31ALEFE (B : #o)

12.

13.

14.

92

Financial risk management

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal
course of the IFEC’s business. The IFEC's exposure to
foreign exchange risk is minimal as future transactions
and balances are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The IFEC has no interest bearing assets or
liabilities. The IFEC manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The IFEC's credit risk is mainly attributable to cash at
bank. Management’s policy is that cash balances are
placed only with licensed banks in Hong Kong rated P-1 by
Moody's or A-1 or above by S&P. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position.
In this regard, the IFEC's credit risk is limited.

The IFEC's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

All financial instruments are carried at amortised cost and
the carrying amount is not materially different from their
fair values due to short-term in nature.

Parent and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 March 2021, the parent and ultimate controlling

party of the IFEC is the SFC, which is a statutory body in

Hong Kong and produces financial statements available
for public use.

Funding management

The funding of the IFEC is managed by its parent and
ultimate controlling party, the SFC, which has agreed to
provide continual financial support and adequate funds to
the IFEC to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
The IFEC is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.
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12.

13.

14.

T ERER

REGHIEEXRGBETRREEERR
ERSEERE - BRKREETBENRS
RAEeFE A TTEHE - EILFTARER
SNERRERD o kBTG EREMMEEE
FEE o  REGEENEEITELERK

& > HERERFMAEMETEE T -

REENEERBEIEZRAMRTES
REEEEHEER » REEHRRFRE
MRS P SIREE WS A
U EMEBIFIRIRTT - RENEER
REAEAMBRIRASEEMEE
HUBREIE © BT S » REGFIAED
EEEEER -

REGHHREENER BRI NTAIFH
RBEZTR > KMERREG M
BHNRTRHE - mEEHARRA RN
MBETEK ©

PREEZR T RSREBIEMATIIR > MH
RELEMTIABRHALE  HikmEHR
HATEEMELEEEERESR -

BT RREERE
FK2021FE3831H » REGHBRENK
REERSAEED - ZETE—FEA

ETEME » WIRMMBFHREUMARER -

AEEE
REBNESHBATRRKIERS —

HEEEE EEEREAREGREM
FENMBSZFREANES » UER
REZGNEEREMNTRE - REGFZH
FAERSMERER MY B AR EK o
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The Investor and Financial Education Council (IFEC) is the owner
of the copyright and other intellectual property rights in this
publication. This publication (in whole or in part) may not be
reproduced or distributed, or used for commercial purposes,
without the prior written permission of the IFEC.
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